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We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Arkade Developers Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as the 'Holding Company"), its subsidiaries and associates (Holding Company 

and its subsidiary and Associates together referred to as "the Group"), which comprise the consolidated 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss, the consolidated 

cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated 

financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Company Act, 2013 

('Act') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the consolidated state 

of affairs (consolidated financial position) of the Group as at 31 March 2022, its consolidated profit 

(consolidated financial performance) and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143( 1 0) of the Company act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 

the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by I CAl together 

with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

under the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 



Other Matters 
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1. The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

and the transition date opening Balance Sheet as at April 01 , 2021 included in these financial 

statements, are based on the previously issued audited financial statements prepared in 

accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, as adjusted for the 

differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on transition to the Indian 

Accounting Standards (lnd AS), which have been audited by us. 

2. Consolidated accounts for the previous year ended on 31st March, 2022, were audited by 

another firm of Chartered Accountants viz. M/S. Kevin Shah & Associates. They have 

expressed the unmodified opinion on the financial statements for the year ended on 31st 

March, 2022 vide their report dated 01 April, 2023. 

3. We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary firms, whose financial statements 

reflect total assets of Rs. 15.30 lakhs as at March 31, 2023 and total revenues of Rs. Nil for the 

year ended on that date and the associates whose financial statements reflect share of profit of 

Rs. 417.43 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 

statements. These financial statements are audited by other auditors and whose reports have 

been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the 

subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it 

relates to the aforesaid subsidiary and associates, is based solely on the reports of auditors. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the management discussion and analysis, Board's 

Report but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements, Standalone Financial Statements 

and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do 

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 

the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
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that there is a material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We 

have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term 

of the requirements of the Company Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of 

affairs (consolidated financial position), consolidated profit or loss (Consolidated financial performance) 

and its consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The 

respective Board of Directors of the company included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 

of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 

and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 

that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true amJ fair view 

and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 

purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding 

Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the company 

included in the Group are responsible for assessing the abili ty of the Group to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 

of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has 

no reaiistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the company included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 

the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
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report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an aud it conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Company Act, 2013, we are 

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial 

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report 

to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 

date of our auditor's report. However. future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 

continue as a going concern. 
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We 

are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of 

such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent 

auditors For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been 

audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and 

performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 

included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit find ings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 
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(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of 
those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant 
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as 
on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company none of 
the directors of the Group company is disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed 
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(0 With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in "Annexure A". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, being the Private Limited Company, the 
provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Company (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the 
consolidated financial position of the Group (refer note 34 of the consolidated financial 
statements) 

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary and associates company 
incorporated in India. 

iv. (a) respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary and Associates which is 
company incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, 
have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 



Mittal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or 
any of such subsidiary and associates to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiary and associates 
("Ultimate Beneficiary") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiary 

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary and associates which is 
company incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, 
have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are 
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company or any of 
such subsidiary and associates from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding 
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or 
any of such subsidiary and associates shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiary") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiary. 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances performed by us on the Company and its subsidiary and associates which is 
company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act. 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub­
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a} and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

(d) Company has not declared dividend during the year hence reporting with respect to section 
123 of the Company Act is not applicable. 

2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Company (Auditor's Report) 
Order, 2020 (the "Order"/ "CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the 
Act. is not applicable to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

For Mittal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. 106456 

~~t 
Hemant R Bohra 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 165667 

UDIN:- ~.31~~~~7 8 fTI<f Pr6o6 
Place : Mumbai 
Date : July 03, 2023 



Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial 

Statements of Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private 

Limited) for the year ended 31st March 2023. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 

of the Company Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arkade Developers Limited 

("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements of the Group for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Group's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 

business, including adherence to Group's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Company Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Company Act, 

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit 

of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Group's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A Group's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Group's internal 

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and {3) 

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, 

use, or disposition of the Group's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Mittal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No. 106456W 

{-\~t 
~ 

Hemant R Bohra 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 165667 

UDIN:- .Z> I &S"b6 7 B<t Tl~ p .C~o6 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : July 03, 2023 



Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Consolidated Balance sheet as on March 31, 2023 

All amounts are '1: in lakhs unless otherwise stated 

Particulars Note As at March 31, As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 

2023 2021 

Assets 
Non-current assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 191-11 182.84 34.60 

(b) Intangible assets 5.1 24.87 -
(c) Financial assets 

(i) Investments 6.1 1,697.26 1,637.54 1,599.01 

(ii) Loans 7.1 

(iii) Other financial assets 8.1 637.24 110.00 65.00 
{d) Non-current tax assets (net ) 9.1 107.96 145.94 166.16 
(e) Deferred tax assets (net ) 10.1 65.88 26.97 22.48 
( f) Other non-current assets 11.1 8.25 

Total non-current assets 2,732.57 2,103.29 1,887.25 

Current assets 

(a) Inventories 12.1 50,052.66 29,900.76 20,408.85 

(b) Financial assets 

(i} Investments 6.1 - 2,316.28 9,764.65 

{ii) Trade receivables 13.1 370.49 525.97 1,261.27 
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14.1 1,661.84 252.15 493.95 

(iv) Bank balances other than {ii) above 15.1 95.23 700.29 665.80 
(v) Loans 7.1 9.07 1.54 2.31 
(vi) Other financial assets 8.1 267.74 18.76 25.68 

(c) Other current assets 11.1 340.66 1,318.20 541.92 
Total current assets 52,797.69 35,033.95 :i3,164.41 

Total assets 55,530.26 37,137.24 35,051.66 

Equity and liabilities 

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 16.1 200.00 200.00 200.00 

(b) Other equity 17.1 19,821.18 14,331.56 9,489.75 

Total attributab le to owners of the parent company 20,021.19 14,531.57 9,689.75 

Total attributable to Non- Controlling Interest 5.24 (19.85) 94.12 

Tota l Equity 20,026.43 14,511.72 9,783.87 

liabilit ies 

Non-current liabilities 

{a) Financial liabilities 

{i) Borrowings 18.1 7,875.45 119.86 

{ii) Other financial liabilit ies 19.1 -
{b) Provisions 20.1 109.14 91.23 67.89 

(c) Deferred Tax l aibili ties {Net) 10.1 -
Tota l non-current liabilities 7,984.59 211.09 67.89 

Current liabilities 

{a) Financial liabilities 

{i) Borrowings 18.1 7,024.08 6,321.42 1,369.36 

{ii) Trade payables 21.1 

- Total outstanding dues to small and micro enterprises 796.63 32543 609.11 

• Total outstanding dues of creditors other 1,555.26 1,047.74 1,620.14 

than small and micro enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabili ties 19.1 1,372.86 770.86 737.77 

(b) Other current liabil ities 22.1 16,479.87 13,081.04 20,314.08 

(c) Previsions 20.1 290.53 867.95 549.43 

(d) Current tax liabilities {net) 23.1 -
Total current liabilities 27,519.23 22,414.43 25,199.89 

Tota l equity and liabilities 55,530.26 37,137.24 35,051.66 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1-46 l 
As per our report of even date - For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

For Mitta l & Associates c;,SOCt..q Arkade Developers limited 

Chartered Accountants "" oN No ~ 
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1- ~ ~ Amit Jain Arpit Jain Samshet Shetye Sheetal Solan i {-\~ ~~s,!4 · ~~ Managing Director Whole-time Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

--:::::==- * M'V~ DIN : 00139764 DIN: 06 9631 M No. : A45964 
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 

All amounts are~ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

Particulars 

I Revenue from operations 

II Other income 

Il l Total income (I+ II} 

IV Expenses 

(a) Cost of construction 

(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 

(c) Employee benefit expense 

(d) Finance costs 
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 

(f) Other expenses 

Total expenses (IV} 

v Profit before tax and share of profit (loss) from associates (III-IV} 

Share of profit I (loss) from associates 

VI Profit before tax 

VII Tax expense 

(1) Current tax 

(2} Deferred tax expense/ (credit) 

Total tax expense (VI} 

VIII Profit for the year (V -VI} 

(i) Owners of the company 
(ii) Non controll ing interest 

IX Other comprehensive income 

(A) Items that w ill not be reclassified to profit or loss 

(a) (Loss)/Gain on remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 

(b) Income tax on above 

Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 

(i) Owners of the company 

(ii) Non contro ll ing interest 

X Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (VII+VIII) 

(i) Owners of the company 

(ii) Non controlling in terest 

XI Earnings per equity share (Face value of '1: 10/- per share) 

(1) Basic(~) 

(2) Dil uted('~:) 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 

As per our report of even date 

-For Mittal & Associates c:,SOCL 
C.hartered Accountants '+:!?-~\oN No.;~ 
Ftrm Reg. No.: 106456W ~ j!;t®\ :.P 

~l~a ~* 1 
\-': ~ ~ 

~ ?::i$-~bl;~ * ~ 
--- * . 't)-<Q Hemant R Bohra M\} 

Partner 

M No.165667 

Place: Mumbai 

Date : July 03, 2023 

-

Note 

24.1 

25.1 

26.1 

27.1 

28.1 

29.1 

30.1 

31.1 

32.1 

32.1 

36.1 

32.1 

33.1 

1-46 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

22,015.27 
944.52 

22,959.79 

33,442.84 

(20,151.91) 

1,708.34 

128.12 

27.12 

986.91 

16,141.41 

6,818.38 

417.43 

7,235.82 

1,790.64 

(38.90) 

1,751.74 

5,484.08 

5,485.79 

(1.71) 

(3.82) 

(3.82} 

(3.82} 

5,487.90 

5.489.61 

(1.71) 

274.20 

274.20 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 

22,893.46 

575.67 

23,469.13 

25,487.92 

(9,491.91) 

794.62 

432.94 
7.13 

658.25 

17,888.94 

5,580.19 

720.77 

6,300.96 

1,414.58 

(4.49) 

1,410.09 

4,890.87 

4,853.73 
37. 14 

11.91 

11.91 

11.91 

4,878.97 

4,841.82 

37.14 

244.54 

244.54 

g\)ELO,¢ 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of ~9/ ~ 
Arkade Developers Limited Q CJl 

1

) 

= 
AmitJain 

Managing Director 

DIN : 00139764 

Samshet Shetye 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: July 03, 2023 

~ i 

Arpit, Jain 

Whole-time Director 

DIN : 06899631 

~JY 
Sheetal Solani 

Compliance Officer 

M No. : A45964 



Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Consolidated Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2023 
All amounts are It in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

Particulars 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit before tax 

Adjustments for: 

Finance costs 
Interest income 

Loss/( Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net) 

Fair value (gain) on investments (net) 

Loss I (gain) on sale of current investments (net) 

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 
Operating profit before working capital changes 

Adjustments for: 

(lncrease)/decrease in operating assets 

Trade receivables 

Inventories 

Other financial assets (Non-Current and Current) 

Loans to staff 

Other assets (Non-Current and Current) 

Increase/( decrease) in operating liabilities 

Trade payables 
Provisions (Non-Current and Current) 

Other financial liabilities (Non-Current and Current) 

Other current liabilities 

Changes in Working Capital 

Cash generated from operations 

Income taxes paid (Net of Refund) 

Net cash generated by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

(Investment in) I Proceeds from Bank Deposits 

(Investment) I withdrawal from investments in subsidiary & associates firms 

(Investment in) I Proceeds from current investments 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets 

Interest Income 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment and other intangible 

assets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from long term borrowings 

Repayment of long term borrowings 

Proceeds from short term borrowings (net) 

Interest paid 

Change in Non- Controlling Interest 

Net cash (used in) I generated by financing activities 

(Loss)/Gain on remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

For year ended For year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

7,235.82 6,300.96 

128.12 43294 
(45.48) (65.15) 

- 0.34 

- (11.64) 
(72.73) (304.28) 
27.12 7.13 

7,272.83 6,360.31 

155.48 735.30 

(20,151.90) (9.491.91) 
(776.22) (38.08) 

(7.53) 0.77 
969.29 (776.28) 

978.74 (856.09) 
(559.51) 341.86 

602.00 33.09 
3,398.83 (7,233.04) 

(15,390.82) (17,284.38) 

(8,117.99) (10,924.08) 

(1.752.65) (1,394.21) 

(9,870.64) (12,318.29) 

605.07 (34.50) 

(59.73) (38.53) 

2,389.01 7,764.28 

(60.26) (181.38) 

45.48 65.15 

- 25.50 

2,919.58 7,600.53 

7,783.31 119 86 
(27.72) -
702.66 4,952.06 

(128.12) (432.94) 

26.80 (151.12) 

8,356.93 4,487.87 

3.82 (11.91) 

1,409.69 (241.80) 

252.15 493.95 

1,661.84 252.15 
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Particulars 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet: 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Refer Note 1S) 

Note: 

For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1,661.84 252.15 

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS- 7) "Statement of Cash 

Flow". 
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ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 
Notes of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 

Significant Accounting Policies 

1 Corporate information 

Arkade Developers Limited is a Public Company domiciled in India and incorporated on 13th May, 1986 under the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office situated at Arkade House, Opp. Bhhomi Arkade, Ashok Nagar, 
Kandivali East, Mumbai, 400 101. The company is primarily engaged in real estate development. The operations of the 
Company span all aspects of real estate development, from the identification and acquisition of land, to planning, execution, 

construction and marketing of Commercial and residetial projects. 

These Consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on July 03, 

2023. 

2 Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1.1 Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following the accrual basis of accounting in 

accordance with the Generally accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India (Indian Accounting standards referred to as 
"lndAS") as specified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standard) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendments rules issued there after and and presentation requirements of Division II of 
Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (lnd AS compliant Schedule Ill). These Consolidated financial statements are 

presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated. 

These financial statements are the Company's first lnd AS financial statements and are covered by lnd AS 101, First time 

adoption of Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS 101). The transition to lnd AS has been carried out from the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India ("Indian GAAP") which is considered as the "Previous GAAP" for the purpose of lnd AS 

101. Under previous GAAP financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under 
section 133 of the Act read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ("Indian GAAP") and other 

relevant provisions of the Act as applicable. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities: 

i. Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value; 

ii. Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value. 
iii. Investments in equity instruments, other than investments in subsidiary & associates firm, measured at fair value 

thorugh profit & loss account (FVTPL) 

2.1.2 Principles of Consolidation 
Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or 
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its 

power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. 

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Group. 



ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Private limited) 

Notes of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 
Significant Accounting Policies 

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of 
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany transaction~ balances and unrealised gains on transactions 
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of 

an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure 
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group. 

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the restated consolidated 

statement of profit and Joss, restated consolidated statement of changes in equity and restated consolidated statement of 
assets and liabilities respectively. 

Associates 
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the 

case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using 
the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost. 

Equity Method 
Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise 
the Group's share of the post acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and loss, and the Group's share of other 

comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from associates 
and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment. 

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, ·including 

any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless_ it has incurred obligations 
or made payments on behalf of the other entity. 

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of 

the Group's interest in these entities. 

Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. 

Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the 

policies adopted by the Group. 

2.2 Current versus non-current classification 
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is 

treated as current when it is: 
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 



ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Notes of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 
Significant Accounting Policies 

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for 
each of the Group's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally 

cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash 
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, 

the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years; 
unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate 
for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Group operates, or for the market in which the asset is 

used. 

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement of profit 
and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the 

impairment is recognized in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation surplus. 

For assets excluding goodwill and intangible assets having indefinite life, an assessment is made at each reporting date to 

determine whether there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If 
such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment 
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the 

assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal 
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount 

that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 
Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 

case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

As per the assessment conducted by the Group there were no indications that the non-financial assets have suffered an 
impairment loss during the reporting periods. 

2.6 Financial instruments 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair 

value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 
appropriate, on initial recognition. 

2.6.1 Financial assets 
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis: Regular way 

purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established 
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. 

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending 
on the classification of the financial assets 

2.6.2 Classification of financial assets 
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for debt 



ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Notes of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 
Significant Accounting Policies 

• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows: and 
• the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition): 
• the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets: and 

• the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange 
gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange 

differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial 
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of 'Reserve for debt instruments 
through other comprehensive income'. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously 

accumulated in this reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. 

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 

2.6.3 Effective interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest 

income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and 
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to 
the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

2.6.4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity 
instruments, which are not held for trading. 
Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured at FVTPL. In 

addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are 
measured at FVTPL. 

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be 
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or 

recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them 
on different bases, The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 

2.6.5 Investments In equity instruments at FVTOCI 

On initial recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the 
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This 
election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair 
value plus transaction costs. 



ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Notes of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 
Significant Accou11ting Policies 

Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The 

cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments. 

A financial asset is held for trading if: 
•it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or 

• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has 
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 

•it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee. 

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the 

dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend win flow to the entity, the 
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured 

reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss is included in the 'Other income' line item. 

The Group has not elected for the FVTOCI irrevocable option for this investment. 

2.6.6 Impairment of financial assets 
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets. The impairment 
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For trade receivables or any 

contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of lnd AS 
1 R. thP C,rmm ;:~lw;:~vc; mP;:!c;urPs thP loss ;~llow;:~nr.P ;:~t ;~n ;:~mount POII:il to lifPtimP PXnPrtPrl r.rPrlit losc;Ps. 

2.6. 7 Derecognition of financial assets 
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it 
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the 
Group neither transfers nOf retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the 

transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have 
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group 
continues to recognise the financial asset and recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

On de recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the 
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive 

income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in 

profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. 

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a 

transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to 
recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those 
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer 



ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Notes of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 
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2.7 Financial liabilities and equity Instruments 
2. 7.1 Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with 
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

2.7.2 Equity instruments 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct 

issue costs. 

2.7.3 Financialliabilities 
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. 

2.7.4 Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at 
FVTPL. 
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 

•It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or 

• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has 
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or 
•it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: 
• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise 

arise; 
• the. financial liability forms part of a Group of financial assets or financial-liabilities or both, which is managed and its 
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment 

strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or 
• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and lnd AS 109 permits the entire combined 

contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with lnd AS 109. 

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid 

on the financial liability and is included in the 'other gains and losses' line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 
Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or they 
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and 

payable is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

2. 7.5 Other financial liabilities: 
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using the effective interest method. 
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest 

expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction 
costs and other premiums or discounts} through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter 

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

2.7.6 Derecognitlon of financial liabilities 
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have 

expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an 
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability, Similarly, a substantial 

modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) 
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The 

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

2.8 Investment In Subsidiaries 
The investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost as per IND AS 27. The Group regardless of the nature of its involvement 
with an entity (the investee), determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee. The Group 
controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the 

ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 

Thus, the Group controls an investee if and only if it has all the following: 

•power over the investee; 
•exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and 
•the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns. 

Investments are accounted in accordance with lnd AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of 
investment, the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement 
of profit and loss. 

2.9 Inventories 
Inventories comprise of: (i) Construction materials and consumables (ii) Construction Work-In-Progress representing 

properties under construction/development (iii) Finished Inventories representing unsold units in completed projects 

The construction materials and consumables are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. The construction materials 

and consumables purchased for construction work issued to construction are treated as 

The construction work in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of land, development 

rights, rates and taxes, construction costs, borrowing costs, other direct expenditure, allocated overheads and other 
incidental expenses. 

Finished stock of completed projects and stock in trade of units is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. 
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2.10 Revenue recognition 

Revenue from contacts with customer is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer 
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 

services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price which is the consideration, adjusted for discount and other 
credits, if any, as specified in the contract with customer. The Group presents revenue from contracts with customer net of 

indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss. The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to 
determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue 
arrangement. 

Income from property development 

The Group considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a 
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated in determining the transaction price, the Group considers the effect of 
variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration 

payable to the customer (if any). 

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognize the revenue over the time if the Group's performance does not 
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and it has an enforceable right to receive payment for performance 
completed till the date on the basis of the agreement entered with customers, otherwise revenue is recognized point in 

time. The revenue is recognized at the point in time when the control of the asset is transferred to the customer and the 
performance obligation is satisfied i.e. on transfer of legal title of the residential unit and on completion of project and 

occupation certificate is received. 

When it is not possible to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation and the Group expect to recover 
the cost incurred in satisfying the performance obligation revenue is recognized only to the extent of the cost incurred until 

such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation 

The Group becomes entitled to invoice customers for construction of residential and commercial properties based on 

achieving a series of construction-linked milestones. When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by delivering the 
promised goods or services it creates a contract asset based on the amount of consideration earned by the performance. 

Any amount previously recognized as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivable at the point when the Group has the 
right to receive the consideration that is unconditional. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfer goods or 

services to the customer, the contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue, when the Group performs under the contract. 

2.11 Income Tax 
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences 
and to unused tax losses. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the 
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates 
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted to apply 
when the related deferred income tax assets is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax 
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Group has a legally 
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Group recognizes 
MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income 
tax during the specified period i.e. the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the 
Group recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance note on Accounting for Credit available in respect 
of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of 
profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitlement" under the deferred tax assets. The Group reviews the "MAT Credit 
Entitlement'' asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Group does not have convincing 
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. 

2.12 Employee Benefits: 
2.12.1 Short-term obligations 

Uabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve 
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee 
service upto the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet. 

2.12.2 Post-employment 
Defined contribution plan 
The Group makes specified monthly contribution towards employee provident fund to Employees' Provident Fund. The 
Group's contributions to the fund are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which the 
employee renders the service. 

Defined benefit plan 
The Group's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is 
determined based on actuarial valuation carried at the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises 
each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to 
build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The 

discount rate used for determining the present value of~h otgfgatlo,n u~er defined b~---· lans, is based on the market 
yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet d f!cr ~~,oN tvq , ~ '\ ..-0 :;:~L 0,¢ 
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The Group recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit expense in 

statement of profit or loss: 

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine 
settlements 

Net interest expense or income 

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net 

interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the 
net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to 
retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not 

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

2.13 Transition to lnd AS 
The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application: 

• Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar en 
date 
• Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease terr 

on the date of initial application, variable lease and low value asset. 
•Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application. 

2.14 Segment reporting: 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 

maker. The Board of directors monitors the operating results of all product segments separately for the purpose of making 
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. 

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Further: 
• Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with I allocable to the segment including 

inter-segment revenue. 
• Expenses that are directly identifiable with I allocable to segments are considered for determining the segment result. 
Expenses which relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments are included under unallocable expenditure. 

• Income which relates to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in unallocable income. 
• Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. Unallocable assets and 
liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to any segment. 

2.15 Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, 
and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) if any that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without 

a corresponding change in resources. 
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2.16 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to real estate project development activities are inventorised I capitalized as 
part of project cost. 

Borrowing costs are inventorised I capitalised as part of project cost when the activities that are necessary to prepare the 

inventory I asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Borrowing costs are suspended from inventorisation I 
capitalisation when development work on the project is interrupted for extended periods and there is no imminent 
certainty of recommencement of work. 

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs 
that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 

maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value. 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit 
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months 

or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet. 

2.18 Foreign currency translation 
Functional and presentation currency 
The Group's Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee(!~) which is also the Group's functional currency. Foreign 
currency transaction are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the 

date of transaction 

Measurement of foreign currency item at the balance sheet date: 
• Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange ratE 

prevailing on the reporting date. 
• Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchan~ 
rates at the dates of the initial transactions 

Exchange differences: 
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised as income or expense in the 

2.19 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 

2.19.1 Provisions: 
A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
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When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but 
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit 

and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 

time is recognised as a finance cost in respective expense. 

2.19.2 Provision for Defects Liabilities and Repairs 
As per, Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA) vide section 14(3) a builder or developer will be liable to 
repair any defect, on the building sold, for a period of Five years. Further, as per the terms of contracts with customers, the 
Group is liable for any defects, repairs and other claims for crtain period after completion and handover of the possession of 

developed properties. Provision for defect liability and repairs is recognized when sales from contracts with customer is 
recognized. Certain percentage to the sales recognised is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision 

for expense to be accrued. The recognition percentage is based on management estimates of the possible future incidence. 
The claims against defect liability and repairs from customers may not exactly match the historical percentage, so such 

estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of occurrence and revised 
accordingly. 

2.19.3 Contingent liabilities 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present 
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an otJtflow of resources will be required to settle the 

obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases, where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the 

financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote. 

2.20 Fair value measurement 

The Group measures financial instruments, such as investments (other than equity investments in subsidiaries and joint 

ventures) and derivatives at fair value at each Balance Sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the 
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

•In the principal market for asset or liability, or 
•In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or liability is 
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The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 

to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement as a whole: 

• Levell- Quoted( unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 

or indirectly observable 
• Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 

unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that 

is significant to fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

2.21 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of these Consolidated financial statements requires the management to make judgments, use estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the acGrouping 

disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgements, assumptions and estimates 
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in 

future periods. 

i. Taxes 
Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of 
future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships differences arising between the actual results and the 

assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and 
expense already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions 
is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations 

by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. 

ii. Employee benefit plans 
The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit} is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation 
involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the 

determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the 
complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly 
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iii. Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Group, including legal, 

contractor and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events 

occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the 
exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of future events. 

lv. Property Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment represent significant portion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of 

periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end 
of its useful life. The useful life and residual value of Group's assets are determined by Management at the time asset is 

acquired and reviewed periodically including at the end of each year. The useful life is based on historical experience with 

similar assets, in anticipation of future events, which may have impact on their life such as change in technology. 

v. Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset including intangible assets having 

indefinite useful life and goodwill may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset 
is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 

CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 

recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in 
use , the estimated future cash flows are estimated based on past trend and discounted to their present value using a pre­

tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In 

determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can 

be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other 

fair value indicators. 

vi. Provisions for Defect liability and repairs 

As per, Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA) vide section 14(3) a builder or developer will be liable to 
repair any defect, on the building sold, for a period of Five years. Further, as per the terms of contracts with customers, the 

Group is liable for any defects, repairs and other claims for crtain period after completion and handover of the possession of 

developed properties. Provision for defect liability and repairs is recognized when sales from contracts with customer is 
recognized. Certain percentage to the sales recognised is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision 

for e.xpense to be accrued. The recognition percentage is based on management estimates of the possible future incidence. 

The claims against defect liability and repairs from customers may not exactly match the historical percentage, so such 

estimates are reviewed annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of occurrence and revised 
accordingly. 

(vii) Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets 

The Group follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Under this 

approach the Group does not track changes in credit risk but recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs 
at each reporting date. For this purpose the Group uses a provision matrix to determine the impairment loss allowance on 

the portfolio of trade receivables. The said matrix is based on historically observed default rates over the expected life of 
the trade receivables duly adjusted for forward looking estimates. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposures, the Group determines whether there has 



ARKADE DEVELOPERS LIMITED (Formerly Known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Notes of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 

Significant Accounting Policies 

(v) lnd AS 116-Annual Improvements to lnd AS (2021} 
The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve 

any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were 
described in that illustration. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its Financial 

Statements. 

2.23 First-time adoption- mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions 
The Group has prepared the opening balance sheet as per lnd AS as of April1, 2021 (the transition date) by, 

recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by lnd AS, 

not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by lnd AS, 

by reclassifying items from previous GAAP to lnd AS as required under lnd AS, and 

applying lnd AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities. 

However, this principle is subject to the certain exception and certain optional exemptions availed by the Group as detailed 
below. Since, the financial statements are the first financial statements, the first time adoption- mandatory exceptions and 

optional exemptions have been explained in detail. 

De recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities: 
The Group has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for 

transactions occurring on or after April1, 2021 (the transition date). 

(i) Designation of previously recognised financial instruments 
The Group has designated financial liabilities and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss on the basis of the facts 

and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to lnd AS. 

(ii) Impairment of financial assets 
The Group has applied the impairment requirements of lnd AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by lnd AS 101, it 

has used reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk 
at the date that financial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition 
date. Further, the Group has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of 

transition to lnd ASs, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by 

lnd AS 101. 

(iii) Deemed cost for investments in subsidiaries 
The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its investments in subsidiaries recognised as of April 1, 
2021 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. 
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4 Property, plant and equipment 

Particulars Office equipment Computer 

I. Cost/Deemed Cost 
Balance as at Apri l1, 2021 1.4821 5.3986 

Add itions 2.0399 4.9240 

Disposals - (1.0497) 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 3.5220 9.2729 

Add itions 1.5180 14.0729 

Disposals - -

Balance as at March 31, 2023 5.0399 23.3458 

II. Accumulated depreciation 

Balance as at April1, 2021 0.5715 3.0473 

Depreciation expense for the year 0.4300 1.1486 

Eliminated on disposal of assets - (1.0497} 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 1.0015 3.1461 
Depreciation expense for the year 0.8901 3.9958 

Eliminated on disposa l of assets - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.8915 7.1420 

Ill. Net block balance (1-11) 

As on March 31, 2023 3.1484 16.2038 

As on March 31, 2022 2.5205 6.1268 

As on April1, 2021 0.9106 2.3514 

Vehicles Total 

77.1609 84.0416 
174.4115 181.3754 
(70.7825) (71.8323) 

180.7899 193.5847 
19.8000 35.3909 

- -

200.5899 228.9756 

45.8198 49.4386 
5.7238 7.3024 

(44.9450) (45.9948) 

6.5987 10.7462 
22.2302 27.1161 

- -

28.8288 37.8623 

171.7611 191.1133 

174.1912 182.8385 

31.3410 34.6030 

(a} There are no impa irment losses recognised during the year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 

(b) Assets pledged as security 

a. Vehicles with a carrying amount of' 171.76 Lakhs (as at March 31, 2022: '174.19 Lakhs and as at April 1, 2021: l{ 31.24 Lakhs) 

included in the block of Vehicles have been pledged to secure borrowings of the Company (see note 18.1). 

(c) The Group has not reval ued its property, plant and equipment as on each reporting period and therefore Schedule Il l disclosure 

requirements with respect to fa ir value deta ils is not appl icable. 

(d) The Group does not hold any immovable property, other than properties where the Group is the lessee and the lease agreements 

are duly executed in favour of the lessee, whose t itle deeds are not held in the name of the Group. 
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5.1 Intangible assets 

Particulars 

I. Cost/Deemed cost 

Balance as at April1, 2021 

Additions 

Disposals 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Addit ions 

Disposals 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

II. Accumulated amortisation 

Balance as at April1, 2021 
Amortisation expense for the year 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Amortisation expense for the year 

Eliminated on disposal of assets 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Ill. Net block balance (I-ll) 

As on March 31, 2023 

As on March 31, 2022 

As on April 1, 2021 

Computer Software Total 

- -
- -
. -

- -
24.87 24.87 

- -
24.87 24.87 

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

- -

- . 

24.87 24.87 

- . 
- -

5.2 The Group has not revalued its intangible assets as on each reporting period and therefore Schedule Ill disclosure requirements with respect to fair value details is not appl icable. 

5.3 The computer software under Intangible assets is having useful life of indefinite period and hence not amortised. 
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6.1 Investments 
Particular As at March 31, 2023 

No. of Units Amount 
Non-current 
Unquoted Investments (all fully paid) 
Investments in Current Capital of Associates Firms 

Arkade Abode LLP -
Chandak & Arkade Associates -

Atul & Arkade Realty 1,697.26 

Total 1,697.26 

Quoted Investments (all fully paid) 
Investments in Mut ual Fu n ds 
HDFC Low Duration Fund - Regular Plan - Growth - -
HDFC Overnight Fund Collection - -
HDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - -
ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund Growth - -
ICICI Prudential Floating Interest Fund - Growth - -
IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - -
ICICI Prudential Ultra Short Term Fund - Growth - -

Total -

Total aggregate unquoted investments 
Aggregate amount of market value of quoted investments -

Aggregate amount of cost of quoted investments -
Aggregate amou nt of cost of unquoted investments 1,697.26 
Aggregate amount of impairment value of investments -

As at March 31, 2022 As at April1, 2021 
No. of Units Amount No. of Units Amount 

7.84 7.84 
0.78 0.78 

1,628.91 1,590.38 

1,637.54 1,599.01 

24,58,837 1,151.10 93,61,024.71 4,213.41 

- - 11,563.95 351.58 
8,86,297 108.82 1,05,71,922.47 1,252.37 

- - 8,17,082.38 904.66 
- - 9,04,900.00 2,934.77 

- - 8,75,790.56 104.38 
47,11,680 1,056.37 16,138.92 3.48 

2,316.28 9,764.651 

I 

2,316.28 9,764.65 

- 2,304.64 9,608.21 

;;, r;so~4 1,599.01 
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6.2 The Group has three associate firms and accordingly, the Company is compliant with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Restriction on number of Lavers) Rules, 2017). 

~~ ~ .. rrc: ~ 

~: 
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6.3 Details of Investment in Partnership Firms: 

,-, - -- - -------- ------ ---

Name of the Partners 

Arkade Developers Pvt Ltd. 

Sandeep U Jain 

Arpit V Jain 

Total Capital 

(ii) M/s Chandak & Arkade Associates 

Name ofthe Partners 

Arkade Developers Pvt ltd. 

Chandak Realtors Pvt Ltd 

Total Capital 

(iii) M/s Atul & Arkade Realty 

Name of the Partners 

Arkade Developers Pvt Ltd. 

Atul Projects India Ltd. 

Total Capital 

As at 31st March 2023 

Share of Each 
Total Capital 

partner 

(%) Amount in 

50.00 -

25.00 -

25.00 -

100.00 -

As at 31st March 2023 

Share of Each 
Total Capital 

partner 

(%) Amount in· 

50.00 -
50.00 -

100.00 . 

As at 31st March 2023 

Share of Each 
Total Capital 

partner 
(%) Amount in· 

40.00 1,697.26 

60.00 1,652.24 

100.00 L--- _},349.50 

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 

Share of Each 
Total Capital Share of Each partner Total Capital 

partner 

(%) Amount in· (%) Amount in· 

50.00 7.84 50.00 7.84 

25.00 1.30 25.00 1.30 

25.00 1.11 25.00 1.11 

100.00 10.26 100.00 10.26 

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 

Share of Each 
Total Capital Share of Each partner Total Capital 

partner 

(%) Amount in· (%) Amount in · 

50.00 0.78 50.00 0.78 

50.00 0.78 50.00 0.78 

100.00 1.57 100.00 1.57 

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 

Share of Each 
Total Capital Share of Each partner Total Capital 

partner 

(%) Amount in (%) Amount in· 

40.00 1,628.91 40.00 1,590.38 

60.00 1,518.69 60.00 1,485.06 

100.00 3,147.60 100.00 3,075.44 
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(iv) M/s Bhoomi & Arkade Associates 
As at 31st March 2023 

Name of the Partners 
Share of Each 

Total Capital 
partner 

(%) Amount in · 

Arkade Developers Pvt Ltd. 34.00 (32.75) 
Bhoomi Shashwat Estate Pvt. Ltd. 66.00 (79.07) 

Total Capital 100.00 (111.82) 

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 

Share of Each 
Total Capital Share of Each partner Total Capital 

partner 
(%) Amount in · (%) Amount in · 

34.00 (359.26) 34.00 (1,256.90) 

66.00 (988.79) 66.00 (2,571.10) 

100.00 (1,348.05) 100.00 (3,828.00) 
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7.1 loans 
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 

Non-current - unsecured, considered good 
(a) Loans to employees . 

Total . 

Current- unsecured, considered good 
(a) Loans to employees 9.07 

Total 9.07 

8.1 Other financial assets 
Particulars 

As at March 31, 2023 

Non Current - unsecured, considered good 
(a) Deposits with bank 

· Margin money deposits with banks (held as lien by bank) 637.24 

Total 637.24 

Current · unsecured, considered good 
(a) EMD Deposits with societies 200.00 
(b) Security deposits 2.99 
(c) Other receivables 64.75 

Total 267.74 

9.1 Non-current tax assets (net) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2023 

Advance tax (net of provisions) 107.96 

Total 107.96 
---- --------

As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 2021 

. -

. -

1.54 2.31 

1.54 2.31 

As at March 31, 2022 As at April1, 2021 

110.00 65.00 

110.00 65.00 

1.00 3.00 
2.99 6.28 

14.76 16.40 
18.76 25.68 

As at March 31, 2022 As at April1, 2021 

145.94 166.16 

145.94 166.16 
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10.1 Deferred tax asset (net) 

10.2 Deferred tax asset s/(liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2023 

Particulars Opening Balance Recognised in 

as on Aprill, 2022 Profit or loss 

(expense)/ credit 

Property, plant and equipment 0.17 (2 .65} 

Intangible assets -
Provisions 26.80 10.83 

Disallowances under Income Tax - 30.74 

Total 26.97 38.91 

10.3 Deferred tax assets/( liabilities) in relation to the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars Opening Balance Recognised in 

as at April 01, Profit or loss 

2021 (expense)/ credit 

Property, plant and equipment 2.91 (2.74) 

Intangible assets -

Provisions for Employee Benefits 19.57 7.23 

Disallowances under Income Tax -
Total 22.48 4.49 

Recognised in Recognised Closing balance as 

Other directly in Equity on March 31, 2023 

comprehensive 

income 

- - (2.49) 

-
- - 37.63 

- - 30.74 

- - 65.88 

Recognised in Recognised Closing balance as 

Other directly in Equity at March 31, 2022 

comprehensive 

income 

- - 0.17 

-
- - 26.80 ! 
- - -
- - 26.97 
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11 Other assets 

Particulars As at March 31, 

2023 

Non-current 

(a) Prepaid Expenses 8.25 

Total 8.25 

Current 

(a) Security deposits given against purchase of land -
(b) Balance with Government Authorities 198.82 

(c) Advance to Suppliers 90.27 

(d) Prepaid Expenses 14.92 

(e)lnterest Accrued and due 24.93 

(f) Other Receivables 11.72 

Total 340.66 

12 Inventories 

Particulars As at March 31, 

2023 

At lower of cost or net realisable value 

(a) Work in Progress (Project) 48,977.86 

(b) Finished Goods 1,074.80 

Total 50,052.66 

13 Trade receivables 

Particulars As at March 31, 

2023 

Trade receivables 

(a) Unsecured, considered good 370.49 

(b) Unsecured, credit Impaired -
370.49 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts . 
Total 370.49 

13 The average credit period on sales of goods Is 15 days. 

As at March 31, As at April1, 2021 

2022 

- . 
. . 

947.00 272.10 

120.25 55.85 

67.15 38.08 

3.97 5.07 

16.95 11.68 

162.87 159.14 

1,318.20 541.92 

As at March 31, As at April1, 

2022 2021 

29,900.76 20,072.50 
. 336.34 

29,900.76 20,408.85 

As at March 31, As at April!, 2021 

2022 

525.97 1,261.27 

- -
525.97 1,261.27 

- -

525.97 1,261.27 

13 Considering the inherent nature of business of the Group, Customer credit risk is minimal. The Group generally does not part away 

with its assets unless trade receivables are fully realised. Wherever there is doubt on recovery, the Group makes adequate provision 

based on best estimation of recovery. 

Based on prior experience and an assessment of the current economic environment, management believes there is no credit risk 
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Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 

All amounts are~ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

13.4 Aging of receivables 

As on March 31, 2023 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars 
Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years 

Undisputed 

-considered good 278.07 1.94 - -
-credit impaired 

Disputed 

- considered good - - 88.56 0.94 

- credit impaired - - - -

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 

Total L__ ______ 
.. -·-- ---·--·-·--

As on March 31, 2022 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars 
Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years 

Undisputed 

- considered good 262.86 16.81 99.93 7.10 

-credit impaired 

Disputed 

- considered good 3.88 84.68 0.94 -
- credit impaired 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 

Total 
~ 

~ ~ 

More than 3 years 
Total 

0.98 280.99 
-

- 89.50 
- -

370.49 

-
370.49 

-··-····-·--·---·---

More than 3 years 
Total 

49.77 436.47 

-

- 89.50 

-
525.97 

-
525.97 

·-~--~-



Arkade Developers limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 

All amounts are~ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

As on April 1, 2021 
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Particulars 
Less than 6 months 6 months -1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years 

Undisputed 

- considered good 1,075 .19 27.45 107.92 19.91 

- credit impaired 

Disputed 

- considered good - 0.94 - -

-credit impaired 

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts 

Total 

More than 3 years 
Total 

29.86 1,260.33 

-

- 0.94 

-

1,261.27 

-
1,261.27 



Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 

All amounts are ~ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

14.1 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 

(a) Cash on hand 1.07 
(b) Balances with banks in current account 1,660.75 

(c) Cheques in hand -

Total 1,661.84 
------ -----

As at March 31, As at April 1, 2021 
2022 

12.49 13.23 

239.67 480.72 

- -
252.15 493.95 

14.2 There is no repatriation restriction with regard to cash and cash equivalents at the end of reporting and prior periods. 

15.1 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, As at April 1, 2021 
2022 

(a) Term deposits with banks (with original maturity of 95.23 700.29 665.80 

more than three months but less than twelve months) 

(held as margin money with Banks for guarantees) 

Total 95.23 700.29 665.80 



Arkade Developers limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Umited) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 
All amounts an! I( In Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

16.1 Equity shan! capital 

Particulars 

Authorised capital 
20,00,000 Equity Shares of I{ 10/- each 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 
20,00,000 Equity Shares of I{ 10/- each 

As at March 31, 2023 

No. of Shares Amount 

20,00,000 200.00 
20,00,000 200.00 

20,00,000 200.00 

20,00,000 200.00 

As at March 31, 2022 As at April1, 2021 

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 

20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00 
20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00 i 

! 

20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00 

20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00 

16.2 The Company has only one class of equity shares having face value as "l10/- each. Every holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity 
shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. Any dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

16.3 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31 2022 As at Aprill 2021 

No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount 
At the beginning of the relevant year 20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00 
Add: Issued during the year - - - - -
At the end of the year 20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00 20,00,000 200.00 

16.4 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than S% shan!s: 
Name of shareholder As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31 2022 As at April1 2021 

Number of shares " holding In that Number of shares " holding in that Number of shares % holding in that 
held class of shares held class of shares held class of shares 

Mr. Amit Mangilal Jain 19,99,710 99.99% 19,99,710 99.99% 19,56,350 97.82% 

16.5 Details of Change in % holding of the Promoters 
Promoter Name As at March 31 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Number of shares %of total shares " Change during Number of shares %of total shares %Change during 
held the year held the year 

Mr. Amit MangUal Jain 19,99,710 99.99% 0.00% 19,99,710 99.99% 0.00% 

Promoter Name As at April1, 2021 
Number of shares % of total shares "Change during 

held the year 

Mr. Amit Mangilal Jain 19,99,710 99.99% 0.00% 
I 

16.6 



Arkade Developers limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private limited} 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 

All amounts are~ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

17.1 Other equity 

Paticulars As at March 31, 

2023 
Securities premium 1,879.16 
Retained earnings 17,946.10 
Remeasurement of defined benefi t plan (4.08) 
Total 19,821.18 

17.2 s ecunt1es orem1um 
Paticulars For year ended 

March 31, 2023 

Balance at beginning of the vear 1.879.16 
Securities premium arising on issue of equity shares . 
Share issue costs . 
Balance at end of the year 1,879.16 

As at March 31, As at April1, 

2022 2021 

1,879.16 1,879.16 
12,460.31 7,606.58 

(7.91) 4.00 
14,331.56 9,489.75 

For year ended 

March 31, 2022 

1.879.16 
. 

. 

1,879.16 
.. 

Amount rece1ved '" excess of face value of the equ1ty shares 1s recogn1sed '" Secunt1es Premium. It will be used 

as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, to issue bonus shares, to provide for premium on redempt ion of 
shares, w rite-off equity related expenses like underwriting costs, etc. 

17.3 Retained earnings 

Paticulars For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Balance at beginning of the year 12,460.31 7,606.58 
Profit/( Loss) for the year 5,485.79 4,853.73 

Balance at end of the year 17,946.10 12,460.31 

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned ti ll date less any transfers to General Reserve, 

dividends or other distr ibutions to shareholders. Retained earnings is a free reserve available to the Company. 

17.4 Remeasu rement of defined benef it plan 

Paticulars For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Balance at beginning of the year (7.91} 4.00 

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 3.82 (11.91) 

Income tax on above . . 

Balance at end of the vear 14.081 17.911 
Includes re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to 

statement of profit and loss 

18.1 Borrowings 

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April1, 

2023 2022 2021 

Non Current 

Secured from banks: 

Vehicle Loan from Bank 92.13 119.86 . 

Term Loan from Non-Bank Financial Companies 7,783.31 . . 

7,875.45 119.86 . 
Current 

Secured from banks: 

Current maturities of long term loans from banks 27.72 24.25 . 

Unsecured - at amortised cost 

Loan from related parties (refer note 39) 6,946.35 6,297.18 1,359.96 

Intercorporate Deposit s 50.00 . 9.41 

7,024.08 6,321.42 1,369.36 

Total 14,899.53 6,441.28 1,369.36 



Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 

All amounts are~ in lakhs unless otherwise stated 

18.2 Summary of borrowing arrangements 

The terms of repayment of term loans and other loans are stated below: 

Particulars 

Nature of Security for Non-current borrowings: 

(a) Term loan from HDFC Bank limited 

Security 

Terms of repayment 

Mortgage of Company's share of Inventory, receivables and lnsuranceiThe loan is repayable as 10% of the 
policies of Project namely " Arkade Crown" in Borivali West, Mumbai. Further, collections out of the said projects 

It is secured against Morgage of commercial premises of the Director, Mr. receivables by way of escrow sweep 

Amit Ja in, sitated at 2nd Flor, Arkade House, Atmaram Merchant Marg, 

Kandivali, Mumbai. 

(b) Term Loan from Bajaj Housing Finance limited 

Security 

It carries interst rate@ HDFC-CF-PLR minus 
280 basis point spread (effective rate of 

interest at the time of sanction is 11.25% 

p.a.). 

Secured against exclusive first charge by way of Mortgage of unsoldiThe loan is repayable as 10% of the 
Inventory, scheduled receivables and receivables from unsold units and collections out of the said projects 

Insurance policies of Project namely ''Arkade Aspire" in Goregaon East , 

(c) Vehicle Loan from Bank of Baroda Limited 

Security 

Secured against mortgage of Vehicle. 

receivables by way of escrow sweep. 

It carries interst rate@ BHFl -1-FRR HFCINS 

minus 4.45% spread .. (effective rate of 
interest at the time of sanction is 11.50% 

p.a.) 

The loan is repayable in 60 equal monthly 
installment of Rs. 2.931akhs. 

It carries an interest rate of 10.36% p.a. 

Amount outstanding -

31.03.2023 

1.450.00 

6,333.31 

119.86 

Amount outstanding -

31.03.2022 

144.10 

Amount outstanding-

31.03.2021 

18.3 Loan from Director, Mr. AmitJain, amount ing to Rs. 4103.12 1akhs (PY March 2022 Rs. 3054.26 1akhs, PY April 01,2021 Rs.l76.36 1akhs) are unsecured and carries interest at rate of 8% p.a. The loans are repayable on 

demand. 

Loan from Director, Mr. Arpit Jain amounting toRs. 1406.58 1akhs (PY March 2022 Rs. 958.57 lakhs, PY April 01, 2021 Rs. 57.50 lakhs) are unsecured and carries interest at ra te of 15% p.a. The loans are repayable on 

demand. 

Loan from Director, Mr. Sandeep Jain amounting toRs. 1436.6Siakhs (PY March 2022 Rs. 1125.66 1akhs, PY April 01, 2021 Rs. 86.50 lakhs) are unsecured and carries interest at rate of 8% to 15% p.a. The loans are 
repayable on demand. 

Loan from Relative of Directors, Mrs. Kala Jain amounting toRs. Nil (PY March 2022 Rs. 165.561akhs, PY April 01, 2021 Rs 13.00 lakhs) are unsecured and carries interest ra te of 15% p.a .. The loans are repayable on 
demand. 

Loan from Relative of Directors, M r. Mangilal Jain amounting toRs. Ni l (PY March 2022 Rs. 560.00 lakhs, PY April 01, 2021 Rs. 560.00 lakhs) are unsecured and interest free. The loans are repayable on demand. 

Loan from Relative of Directors, Mrs. Sajjan Jain amounting toRs. Nil {PY March 2022 Rs. 291.00 lakhs, PY April 01, 2021 Rs. 314.00 lakhs) are unsecured and interest free. The loans are repayable on demand. 



Arkade Developers limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 
All amounts are~ in lakhs unless otherwise stated 

Loan from Relative of Directors, Vikram Jain amounting toRs. Nil (PY March 2022 Rs. Nil, PY April 01, 2021 Rs. 16.00 lakhs) are unsecured and interest free. The loans are repayable on demand. 

Loan from Atu l Projects (India) Private Limited amounting toRs. 50.00 lakhs (PY March 2022 Rs. Nil, PY April 01, 2021 Rs. Nil) is unsecured and interest free. The loan is repayable on demand. 

18.4 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 

The table below details changes in the Company's liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or 

future cash flows will be, classified in the Company's statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. 

Particulars For year ended March 31, 2023 
For year ended March For year ended March 

31,2022 31,2021 
Term loans from banks I Non Banking financial companies 

Balance at beginning of year of relevant year 6,441.28 1,369.36 6,039.65 
Financing cash flows 

· Proceeds from issue of long term I short term borrowings 11,700.55 5,427.06 1,462.38 
·Repayment o f long term I short t erm borrowings 3,844.78 573.60 6,186.26 

Non-cash changes 
. Transaction cost of long term borrowings (net) (132.83) 

·Interest accruals on account of amortisation 735.31 218.46 53.60 
Balance at end of year 14,899.53 6,441.28 1,369.36 

18.5 The Company has availed working capital tet'm loans in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets for the specific projects. Quarterly returns I statements and other 
information filed wilh such Banks/ financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts. 
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Arkade Developers Umited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for t he year ended March 31, 20Zi 

All amounts are ~ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

(a) Equity share capital 

For the year ended March 31, 2023 

Balance as at April1, 2022 

200.00 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Balance as at April1, 2021 

200.00 

(b) Other equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at April1, 2022 

Changes in accounting policy 

Restated balance as at April1, 2022 

Profit for the year 

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation, net of Income tax 

Total comprehensive (loss)/Gain for the year 

Securities premium on shares Issued (net of share Issue costs) 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Balance as at Aprll1, 2021 

Changes in accounting policy 

Restated balance as at April1, 2021 

Profit for the year 
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation, net of Income tax 

Total comprehensive (loss)/Galn for the year 

Securities premium on shares issued (net of share Issue costs) 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 

As per our report of even date 

For Mlttal & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No.: 106456W 

~~~t 
--=======-

Hemant R Bohra 

Partner 

M No.165667 

Place: Mumbal 

Date :July 03, 2023 

Changes In equity 

share capital due to 
prior period errors 

-

Changes In equity 
share capital due to 
prior period errors 

-

Securities premium 

1,879.16 

-
1,879.16 

-
-
-
-

1,879.16 

Securities premium 

1,879.16 

-
1,879.16 

-
-

-
-

1,879.16 

1-46 

Restated balance at 
Changes In equity 

Aprll1, 2022 
share capital during 

the year 

200.00 -

Restated balance at 
Changes In equity 

Aprill, 2021 
share capital during 

the year 

200.00 -

Reserves and Surplus 

Retained earnings Remeasurement of 
defined benefit plan 

12,460.31 (7.91) 

- -
12,460.31 (7.91) 

5,485.79 -
- 3.82 

5,485.79 3.82 

- -

17,946.10 (4.091 

Reserves and !iurplus 

Retained earnings RemeiiSurement of 

defined benefit plan 

7,606.58 4.00 

-
7,606.58 4.00 

4,853.73 -
- (11.90) 

4,853.73 (11.90) 

-
12,460.31 (7.91) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

Arkade Developers limited 

AmitJain 

Managing Director 

DIN : 00139764 

Samshet Shetye 

Chief Financial Officer 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: July 03, 2023 

Arpit Jain 

Whole-time Director 

DIN : 06899631 

¢ 
Sheetal Solan! 

Compliance Officer 

M No. : A45964 

Balance as at March 31, 

2023 

200.00 

Balance as at March 31, 

2022 

200.00 

Total 

14,331.56 

-
14,331.56 

5,485.79 

3.82 

5,489.61 

-

19,821.1B 

Total 

9,489.74 

9,489.74 

4,853.73 

(11.90) 

4,841.83 

14,331.57 



Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private limited) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 

All amounts are ~ in lakhs unless otherwise stated 

19.1 Other financial liabilities 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 
2021 

Non-current 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 
Security deposits received - -

Total - -
Current 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: 
Security deposits received from customer 197.02 405 .66 
Interest accrued but not due 25.42 -
Society maintenance liabilities (net of expense 62.44 0.78 
incurred) 

Employee Benefits payable 519.55 81.48 
Accrued Expenses 13.29 2.88 
Project Expenses Payable 545.75 243.94 
Other payables 9.40 36.13 

Total 1,372.86 770.86 

19.2 Refer note 40 on financial instruments. 

20.1 Provisions 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 
As at March 31, 

2021 
Non-current 

Provision for employee benefits 

-Gratuity 104.28 87.41 
- Leave Encashment 4.86 3.82 

Total 109.14 91.23 
Current 

Provision for employee benefits 

- Gratuity 17.40 14.49 
- Leave Encashment 0.99 0.74 

Provision for defect liability & repairs 272 .13 852.71 

Total 290.53 867.95 

21.1 Trade payables 

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 

2022 

{a) Tota l outstanding dues of small and micro 796.63 325.43 

enterprises 

(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 1,555.26 1,047.74 
than small and micro enterprises 

Total 2,351.90 1,373.16 

21.2 The average credit period on purchases is 30 days. 

As at April 1, 
2020 

-

-

253.27 

-
142.22 

27.27 

18.72 

243.99 

52.29 

737.77 

As at April 1, 
2020 

64.53 

3.36 

67.89 

9.19 

0.65 

539.59 

549.43 

As at April 1, 

2021 

609 .11 

1,620.14 

2,229.25 



Arkade Developers limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 

All amounts are~ in lakhs unless otherwise stated 

21.4 Ageing of trade payables 

As on March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Not Due 

Undisputed dues 

- MSME 1,234.14 

-Others 699.56 

Disputed dues 

- MSME -

- Others -
Total 1,933.70 

As on March 31, 2022 

Particulars 

Not Due 

Undisputed dues 

- MSME 196.83 
- Others 349.50 

Disputed dues 

- MSME -
- Others -
Total 546.33 

As on April1. 2021 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years 
Total 

188.20 - 5.38 - 1,427.72 

216.86 2.75 1.67 3.35 924.18 

- - - - -
- - - - -

405.05 2.75 7.05 3.35 2,351.90 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years 
Total 

110.91 17.68 - - 325.43 
211.96 60.13 423.62 2.53 1,047.74 

- - - - -
- - - - -

322.87 77.81 423.62 2.53 1,373.16 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Not Due less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 years 
Total 

Undisputed dues 
- MSME 412.52 196.59 - - - 609.11 

-Others 464.53 417.66 486.36 181.72 69.87 1,620.14 

Disputed dues 
- MSME - - - - - -
- Others - - - - .-- - -

Total 877.06 614.24 486.36 18YN1< ~~7'& 69.87 ~~ 
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Arkade Developers Limited {Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private Limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 

All amounts are~ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

21.5 Disclosures as required under the M icro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act): 

The amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the 'The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006' has been determined to the extent such parties 

have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group. This has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Particulars 

(a) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at period end 

(b) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at period end 

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appoi nted day during the 

period 

(c) Interest paid, other than under Sect ion 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSM ED Act, 

beyond the appointed day during the period 

(d) Interest paid, under Section 16 of M SM ED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the 

appointed day during the period 

(e) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made 

(g) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier periods 

22.1 Other current liabilities 

Particulars 

Statutory remittances 

Advance from Customers 

Current Account balance with Partnership Firms & LLP's 

-

23.1 Current tax liabilities (net of advance tax) 

Particulars 

Income tax payable (net of advance tax) 

Total 

Total 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 2021 

796.63 325.43 609.11 

- - -

- - -

- - -

- - -

- - -

- - -

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 1, 2021 

987.60 274.04 434.35 

15,459.53 12,447.73 18,641.17 

32.75 359.26 1,238.56 

16,479.87 13,081.04 20,314.08 

As at March 31, 2023 I As at March 31, 2022 I As at April1, 2021 



Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at M arch 31. 2023 
All amounts are ~ in lakhs unless otherwise stated 

24.1 Revenue rom operations 

Particulars 

Sale of Properti es 

Other operating revenues 

Development and amenities charges from Sale of Flats 

Total 

For year ended For year ended 

M arch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

21,915.67 22,301.10 

99.61 592.37 

22,015.27 22,893.46 

24.2 The Group has provided for impairment losses, if any, based on expected credit loss policy on trade receivable recognised in 

statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

24.3 Contract balances 

Refer deta ils of t rade receivables in note 13.1 & advance from customers in note 22.1 

24.4 The Group receives payments from customers as per agreed contractual terms and payment schedules. Accounts receivable are 

recorded when the right to consideration becomes uncondit ional. 

24.5 Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price· 

Particulars 
For year ended For year ended 

M arch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Revenue from contracts with customers 21,915.67 22,301.10 

Add: Credits I Returns . 
Contracted price with the customers 21,915.67 22,301.10 

25.1 Other income 

Particulars For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Interest Income on fianancial assets measures at amortised cost 

- From bank deposits 36.74 37.92 

• From delayed payments by customers 8.75 27.22 

45.48 65.15 

Other gains and losses 

• Net gain ari sing on financial investments measure 11.64 

at FVTPL 

-Gain on sale of current investments 72.73 304.28 

72.73 315.91 

Other non-operating Income 

-Cancellation Charges Received from Customers 4.94 5.93 

· Commission Received 10.79 10.95 

-Sundry Balance wri t ten back (net off balances wri tten off Rs. 9.94 Lakhs) 802.90 112.69 

- Miscellaneous income 7.68 65.04 

826.31 194.61 

Total 944.52 575.67 

26.1 Cost of Constructions 

Particulars 
For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Land & Land Re lated cost 14,439.11 13,278.49 

Construction Cost 17,155.23 11,229.61 

Allocated expenses to project: 

Finance cost (refer note 29.1) 662.39 -
Employee benefits expense (refer note 28.1) 50.00 

Other expenses (refer note 31.1} 1,136.12 979.82 

Total 33,442.84 25,487.92 
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27.1 h C am~es m rnventones o rnis e e:oo san ff h d d d wor k. m oroe:ress 

Particulars 

Inventories at the beginning of the Jlear 

-Finished Units (Completed Projects) 
-Work in Progress (Projects under construction I development) 

Inventories at the end of the Jlear 
-Finished Units (Completed Projects) 
-Work in Progress (Projects under construction I development) 

Net (increase)/ decrease 

28.1 E mp oyee b f ene rts expense 
Particulars 

Salaries, wages and bonus 
Director's Remuneration & Bonus 

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 36.2) 
E51C Contribution 

Gratuity (Refer note 38) 
Leave Encashment 

Staff Trarning & Recruitment Expense 
Staff welfare expenses 

Employee benefits expense allocated to Cost of Constructions (refer note 26.1) 

Total 

29.1 Finance cost 

Particulars 

Interest cost - on financial liabilities at amortised cost 

• Borrowings from banks 
- Borrowings from NBFC's 

- Borrowings from Others 

Transaction cost re lated to long term borrowings 
Bank Charges and Stamp Duty Charges on long term borrowings 

Finance cost allocated to Cost of Constructions (refer note 26.1) 

Total 

30.1 Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

Particulars 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Amortisat ion of Intangible assets • 

Total 

For year ended Foryearended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

- 336.34 
29,900.75 20,072.50 

1,074.53 -
48,978.13 29,900.75 

(20,151.91) (9,491.91) 

For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

687.90 434.51 
1,017.02 332.35 

4.64 1.51 
0.72 0.02 

23.60 16.27 

1.29 0.56 
15.48 2.00 

7.69 7.40 

1,758.34 794.62 

(50.00) 

1,708.34 794.62 

For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

11.66 1.98 

114.77 -
619.87 409.11 

2.37 -
41.83 21.85 

790.50 432.94 

(662.39) 

128.12 432.94 

For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

27.12 7.13 
- -

27.12 7.13 

• The computer software under Intangible assets is having useful life of indefinite period and hence not amortised. 
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31.1 Other expenses 

Particulars 

Brokerage & Commission 

Business Promotion & Advertising 
Computer Expenses 
Donation & CSR Expense 
Electricity Charges 

House Keeping Expenses 

Insurance Expenses 
Auditors Remuneration (As per Note 31.2) 
loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 

legal & Professional Fees 
Motor Car Expenses 
Printing & stationary 

Repair & Maintenance Expenses- Others 

Security Expenses 
Stamp Duty Refund 

GST/VAT Reversed/ Paid 
Software & IT re lated Expenses 
Travell ing & Conveyance Expenses 

Miscellaneous Expenses 

Other expenses allocated to Cost of Constructions (refer note 26.1) 

Total 

31.2 Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses (net of GST}: 

(i) For audit 

(ii) For taxation matters 

(iii) For other services 

(iv) For certification work 
(v) Auditors out-of-pocket expenses 

Total 

For year ended For year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

460.38 405.06 

782.14 79.13 

1.83 1.60 
83.27 86.30 
5.47 13.19 

31.54 26.73 

8.59 6.96 

4.00 0.35 
- 034 

549.63 450.40 

5.77 4.99 

10.87 8.63 

9.76 2.70 

74.35 32.40 
27.00 

- 409.63 

19.71 16.75 

21.39 9.93 
54.33 55.97 

2,123.03 1,638.06 

(1,136.12) (979.82} 

986.91 658.25 

For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
4.00 0.35 

-
- -
- -

-
4.00 0.35 
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31.3 Expenses on corporate social responsibility 

No. Particulars 

1 
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the period/ year (under 
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

2 Amount of expenditure incurred 
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 
(ii) On purposes other than (i ) above 

3 Amount not spend during the year on: 

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 
(ii ) On purposes other t han (i) above 

3 Shortfall at the end of the year 

4 Total of previous years shortfal l 

5 Reason for shortfall 
-Adoption of long gestation program/project 

6 Amount yet to be spent/paid 

7 Details of Related party transactions 

-Contributions to the trust in which directors are trustee 
8 Liabi lity incurred by entering into contractual obligations 

9 Nature of CSR activities: 

For year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

76.62 44.05 

- -
79.39 45.00 

-

-
- -

-

21.33 

-
a. Promoting a. Promoting health 
health care .care including 
including preventive preventive health 

health care and care and sanitation 
sani tation b. Protection of Art/ 

b. Protection of Art/ culture 
cu lture c. Ensuring 

c. Ensuring environmental 
environmental sustain ability and 

sustainability and maintaining quality 
maintain ing quality of soi l, air and water 

of soil, air and d. Eradicating 

water hunger, poverty and 
d. Eradicating malnitrition 

hunger, poverty and 
malnitrition 
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32.1 Current Tax and Deferred Tax 

32.2 Income Tax Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 

Particulars 

Current Tax: 
Current income tax charge 
Short provision of tax relating to earlier years 

Deferred Tax expense/ (credit) 

In respect of current period 

Total tax expense/( credit) recognised in statement of profit and loss 

32.3 Income Tax recognised in other Comprehensive Income 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax (liabilities)/ Assets: 
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligations 

Total 

For year ended For year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1,790.64 1,414.58 
- -

1,790.64 1,414.58 

(38.90) (4.49) 

(38.90) (4.49) 

1,751.74 1,410.09 

For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

- -
- -

32.4 Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate· 

Particulars For year ended For year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Profit/{loss) before tax 7,235.82 6,300.96 

less: Income taxed at different tax rate (72.73) {304.28) 

Profit/(loss) Before tax 7,163.08 5,996.68 

Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate# 1,802.81 1,509.25 

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 37.64 (4.82) 

Effect of income that is not taxable in determining taxable profit (105.06) (181.40) 

Effect of income taxed at different rate 21.23 88.63 

Effect of adoption of lnd AS 34.03 2.93 

Income tax related earlier year - -
Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit or loss 1,790.64 1,414.58 

It The tax rate used for the reconci liations above is the corporate tax rate of plus surcharge (as applicable) on corporate 
tax, education cess and secondary and higher education cess on corporate tax, payable by corporate entities in India on 

taxable profits under Income Tax Act, 1961. 

In pursurance of Section llSBAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 announced by the Government of India through Taxation 

Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, the Company has opted for irrevocable option of shifting to lower tax rate w.e.f 

FY 19-20. 

32.5 The Group does not have any unrecorded income and assets related to previous years which are required to be 

recorded during the year. 
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33.1 Earning per share 

Particulars 

(a) Profit/Loss for the year 

(b) Weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding for the purpose of 
basic earnings per share (number$) 

(c) Effect of potential ordinary shares (numbers) 

(d) Weighted average number of ordinary shares in computing diluted earnings per 
share [(b)+ (c)] (numbers) 

(e) Earnings per share on Profit for the year (Face Value 'It 10/- per share) 

-Basic [(a)/(b)] (~) 

-Diluted [(a)/(d)J (~) 

34.1 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for) 

Particulars 

Contingent liabilities : 

(I) Bank Guarantees 

(li) Demands/Claims by Government Authorities not acknowledged as debts and contested/to be 
contested by the Company: 

Service Tax - FY 2016-17 

Goods & Service Tax- FY 2017-18 to FY 2022-23 • 

For year ended For year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 

5,485.79 4,853.73 

20,00,000 20,00,000 

- -
20,00,000 20,00,000 

274.29 242.69 

274.29 242.69 

As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April1, 
2023 2022 2021 

190.00 165.00 65.00 

8.85 8.85 8.85 

2,975.42 2,723.52 1,916.20 

34.2 • The figures for the f inancial year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 includes the amount of contingent liabilities for the 

respective year, where show cause notice or claims have been received after the close of respective reporting period and t ill the date of approval of this 

flanncia l statements by the Board of Directors. 

34.3 The Group is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business, the Impact of which presently Is not 
quantifiable. These cases are pending with various courts I authorities. After considering the circumstances and advice from the legal advisors, 

management believes that these cases will not adversely affect its financial statements. The above Contingent Liabilities exclude undeterminable 
outcome of these pending litigations. 

34.4 Future cash flow in respect of the above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgements/decisions pending with the relevant authorities. Interest, 

penalty or compensation liability arising on outcome of the disputes has not been considered, since not determinable at present. 

34.5 The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any provision was required for foreseeable losses. 

35.1 Segment information 

For management purposes, the Company Is Into one reportable segment I.e. Real Estate development. 

The Managing Director Is the Chief Operating Decision Maker of the Company who monitors the operating results of the Company for the purpose of 
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. The Company's performance as single segment Is evaluated and measured 
consistently with profit or loss In the standalone financial statements. Also, the Company's financing (Including finance costs and finance income) and 

Income taxes are managed on a Company basis 

35.2 Geographical lnformation 

The Group operates in one geographical environment only i.e. in India. 

The Group's revenue from continuing operations from external customers by location of operations and Information about its non-current assets by 

location of assets are detailed below: 
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Particulars 

Within India 

Outside India 

Total 

Particulars 

Within India 

Outside India 

Total 

35.3 Information about major customers 

Revenue from External 
For year For year 

ended March ended March 

31,2023 31,2022 

22,015.27 22,893.46 
. 

22,015.27 22,893.46 

Non-current Assets 
As at March As at March As at April 1, 

31,2023 31,2022 2021 

224.23 182.84 34.60 

224.23 18.2.84 .. 34.60 

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue for the year ended March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and 
March 31, 2021. 

35.4 The reporting segment includes a number of sales operations in various cities within India each of which is considered as a 
separate operating segment by the COOM. For financial statements presentation purposes, these individual operating segments 

have been aggregated into a single reportable operating segment taking into account the following factors: 
• these operating segments have similar long-term gross profit margins; 

• the nature of the products and production processes are similar; and 

• the methods used to dis tribute the products to the customers are the same. 
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36.1 Employee benefit plans 

36.2 Defined contribution plans: 

The Group participates in Provident fund as defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised in 
re lation to provident fund represents the value of contributions payable during the period by The Company at rates specified by the 

rules of provident fund. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were 
not paid until after the end of the reporting period. 

(a) Provident fund and pension 

In accordance with the Employee's Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, eligible employees of the Company are 

entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make 
monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees' salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are 

made to the provident fund administered and managed by Government of India {GOI). The Company has no further obligations under 
the fund managed by the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the period 
they are incurred. The benefits are paid to employees on their retirement or resignation from the Company. 

Contribution to defined contribution plans, recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year under employee benefits 
expense, are as under: 

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
i) Employer's contribut ion to provident fund and pension 4.64 1.51 

ii) Employer's contribution to state insurance corporat ion 0.72 0.02 

Total 5.36 1.54 

(b) Defined benefit plans: 

Gratuity (Unfunded) 

The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a unfunded defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The plan provides 

for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement or at death whi le in employment or on termina t ion of the employment of an 

amount equivalent to 15 days salary, as applicable, payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five 
years of service. The Company accounts for the liabil ity for gratuity benefits payable in the future based on an actuarial valuation. 

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation was carried out for the year ended March 31, 

2023 by an independent actuary. The present va lue of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past 
service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method. 

(A) Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below: 
(1) Actuarial Risk: 

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons: 
i) Adverse Salary Growth Experience 

ii ) Variability in mortality rates 

iiil Variabilitv in withdrawal rates 
(2) Investment Risk 

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the va lue of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair va lue of 
instruments backing the liabili ty. In such cases, the present va lue of t he assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can 

result in wide fluctuations in the net liabili ty or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter­

valuation period. 

(3) liquidity Risk: 

Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such 

employees resign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows. 

(4) Market Risk: 
Market risk is a co llective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluct uations of the financial markets. One act uarial 

assumption that has a material effect is the discount ra te. The discount rate reflects the t ime value of money. An increase in discount 

rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefi t Obl igation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the 
corporate/government bonds and hence the va luation of liabil ity is exposed to fluctuations in t he yields as at the va luation date. 

(5) Legislative Risk 
Legislative risk is t he risk of increase in t he plan liabilities or reduct ion in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The 

government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees. This wi ll 

directly affect the present value of t he Defined Benefit Obl igation and the same will have to be recognized immediately in the year 
when any such amendment is effect ive. 
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(B) Principal actuarial assumptions used: 

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows. 

Gratuity (Unfunded) 
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 
1. Discount rate - Company 7.40% 6.85% 

2. Salary escalation -Company 10.00% 10.00% 

3. Rate of employee turnover -Company 
Age 25 & Below: 25%, Age 25 & Below : 25 %, 

Age 25 to 35 : 20 %, Age 25 to 35 : 20 %, 

Age 35 to 45 : 15 %, Age 35 to 45 : 15%, 
Age 45 to 55 : 10 %, Age 45 to 55 : 10 %, 
Age 55 & above : 5% Age 55 & above : 5 % 

As at April1, 2021 

6.50% 

10.00% 

Age 25 & Below : 25 %, 

Age 25 to 35 : 20 %, 
Age 35 to 45 : 15 %, 

Age 45 to 55 : 10 %, 
Age 55 & above : 5 % 

4. Mortalitv rate Indian Assured lives Mortalitv (2012-14\ Ult. 

{C \ Exoenses recol!nised in orofit and loss 
Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded) 

For year ended March For year ended 

31,2023 March 31, 2022 
Service cost: 

Current service cost 17.12 11.78 ; 

Net Interest cost 6.48 4.49 
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or lo 23.60 16.27 

The current serv1ce cost and the net Interest expenses for the year are 1ncluded 1n the 'Employee benef1ts expenses' line item in the 
Statement of profit and loss. 

(D) Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss: 

Particulars 

Interest cost 

Interest income 
Net interest cost recognised in profit or loss 

(E) Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 

Particu Iars 

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the year 
- Due to changes in demographic assumptions 

- Due to changes in financial assumptions 

• Due to experience adjustment 
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 

Net (income)/expense for the period recognized in OCI 

(F) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet 

Particulars 
Present va lue of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the 

year 

Fair value of plan assets 

Gratuity (Unfunded) 

For year ended March For year ended 

31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
6.48 4.49 

-
6.48 4.49 

For year ended March For year ended 

31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

- -
(3.85) (2.08) 

0.03 13.99 

- . 

(3.82) 11.91 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April1, 2021 

121.68 101.90 73.73 

101.90 
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(G) Net asset/( liability) recognised in the consolidated balance sheet 
Recognised under: As at March 31, 2023 
Long term provision 104.28 
Short term provision 17.40 
Total 121.68 

(H) Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows· 
Particulars For year ended March 

31,2023 
Opening defined benefit obligation 101.90 
Current service cost 17.12 
Interest cost 6.48 
Actuarial losses I (Gain) (3.82) 
Benefits paid from the fund -
Closing defined benefit obligation 121.68 

(I) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation· 

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of re For year ended March 

31, 2023 
Year 1 cashflow 17.40 
Year 2 cashflow 17.33 
Year 3 cashflow 15.70 
Year 4 cashflow 14.01 
Year 5 cashflow 12.93 
Year 6 to year 10 cash flow 50.80 
Total expected payments 128.17 

(J) Sensitivity analysis 

As at March 31, 2022 As at April1, 2021 
87.41 64.53 

14.49 9.19 
101.90 73.73 

For year ended 

March 31, 2022 
73.73 

11.78 
4.49 

11.91 
. 

101.90 

For year ended 

March 31, 2022 

14.49 

13.63 
13.18 

12.02 

10.69 
37.69 

101.70 

The Sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective assumptions occurring at 
the end of the reporting period. while holding all other assumptions constant. These sensitivities show the hypothet ical impact of a 

change in each of the lied assumptions in iso lation. Whi le each of these sensit ivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice 
such assumpt ions rarely change in isolation and the asset va lue changes may offset the impact to some extent. For presenting the 

sensit ivit ies, the present va lue of the Defined Benefit Obligation has been ca lculated using the projected unit credit method at the end 

of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the Defined Benefit Obligation presented above. There was no 
change in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the Sensit ivity Analysis from previous year. 

Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of re For year ended March For year ended 

31,2023 March 31, 2022 
Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 

Rate of discounting 

Impact of +0.5% change 118.37 99.06 

(%change) (2.72%) (2.79%) 
Impact of -0.5% change 125.18 104.90 
(%change) 2.87% 2.94% 

Rate of salary increase 
Impact of +0.5% change 123.17 103.11 
(%change) 1.22% 1.18% 
Impact of -0.5% change 120.38 100.81 

(%change) (1.07%) (1.07%) 

Withdrawal Rate (W.R.) 
W.R. X 110% 122.78 102.64 

(%change) 0.90% 0.72% 

W.R. x90% 120.36 101.00 

(%change) (1.09%) (0.89%) 

(K) Other disclosures 
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(c) Leave Encashment plan 

(A) Throuah Its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most slanlficant of which are detailed below: 

(1) Actuarial Risk: 
Ills the rosk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the follOWing reasons 

I) Adverse Salary Growth Experience 

II) Varoablloty on monaloty rates 
Iii) Variabolity In withdrawal rates 

lv) Variablloty on avaolment rates 

(2) Investment Risk 

For funded plans that rely on onsurers for managing the assets, the value of assets conofied by the insurer may not be the fair value of 

Instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the as.ets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result 
in wide fluctuations In the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the Inter· valuation 

perood. 

(3) Liquidity Risk: 
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher In hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such 

employees resign/retire from the Ent ity there can be strain on the 

cash flows. 
(4) Market Risk: 
Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial 

assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate 

leads to decrease on Defined Benefit Oblogatoon of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the 

corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of liability Is exposed to fluctuations In the yields as at the valuation date.Since the 

benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevoty risk. 

(5) Lesislatlve Risk 
Legislative risk Is the rtsk of oncrease in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to chanae in the leaislation/regulation. The 

aovernment may amend the Shop and Establishment Act, thus requiring the companies to pay hl&her benefits to the employees. This will 

dorectly affect the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation and the same will have to be recoenlzed immediately in the year when 

any such amendment os effective. 

(B) Principal actuarial assumptions used: 

The prlncopalassumptlons used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows 

Gratuity (Unfunded) 

PartiGulars As at Maroh 31, 1023 As at March 31, 2022 As at Aprll1, 2021 

1. Doscount rate ·Company 7.40% 6.85% 6.50% 

2 Salary escalation· Company 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 

3. Rate of employee turnover · Company 
Age 25 & Below: 25 %, Age 25 & Below : 25 %. Age 25 & Below: 25%, 

Age 25 to 35:20%, Age 25 to 35 : 20 %, Age 25 to 35 : 20%, 

Age 35 to 45 : 15 %, Age 35 to 45 : 15%, Age 35 to45 : 15%, 

Age 45 to 55: 10%, Age45 to 55:10%, Age45 to SS: 10%, 

Age 55 & above : 5 % Age 55 & above : 5% Age 55 & above . 5% 

4. MortalitY rate lndoan Assured Lives Mortahty (2012·141 Ult. 

(C ) Expenses recognised in profit and loss 

Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded) 

For year ended March For year ended March 

31,2023 31,2022 

Service cost: 

Current serviCe cost 166 117 
Net Interest cost 0.29 024 

(0.66) (086) 

Net value of remeasurements on the obligation and plan assets 
Components of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or lo 1.29 O.S6 



(D) I d I Net interest cost recogn se fi n p_ro 1t or loss.: 
Particulars Gratuity (Unfunded) 

For year ended March For year ended Mar~h 
31, 2023 31,2022 

Interest cost 0.29 0.24 
Interest income 
Net interest cost recognised In profit or loss 0.29 0.24 

(E ) Remeasurements on the Obligation and Plan Assets 
Particulars For year ended March For year ended March 

31 2023 31,2022 
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obllsatlon for the year 

· Due to changes on demographic assumptions 
Due to changes in fonanclal assumpuons (0 16) (0.08) 

• Due to experience adjustment (O.SO) (0.77) 
Return on plan assets, excluding Interest income 
Net (Gain)/loss for the period reco&nlzed in DC! (0.66 (0.86) 

(F) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance sheet 
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at Aprlll, 2021 

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the 5.86 4.56 4.01 
year 
Fa ir value of plan assets 

5.86 4.56 4.01 

(G ) Net asset/(liability) recognised In the consolidated balance sheet 
Recognised under: As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April1, 2021 

long term prov1sion 4.86 3.82 3.36 
Short rerm provis•on 0.99 0.74 0.65 
Total 5.86 4.56 4.01 

(H) Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows· 
Particulars For year ended March For year ended March 

31 2023 31, 2022 
Opening defined benefit obligation 4.56 4.01 
Transfer in/(out) obligation 
Current service cost 1.66 1.17 
Interest cost 0.29 0.24 
Actuarial losses (0.66) (0.86) 
Benefits paid from the fund 
Closing defined benefit obll&allon 5.86 4.56 

(I ) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation: 
Projected benefits payable In future years from the date of re For year ended March For year ended March 

31, 2023 31,2022 
Year 1 cashflow 0.99 0.74 
Year 2 cashflow 0.89 0.66 
Year 3 cash flow 0.80 0.60 
Year 4 cashflow 0.72 0.54 
Year 5 cash flow 0.66 0.49 
Year 6 to year 10 cashflow 2.62 ! .96 
Total expected payments 6.68 5.00 

(J) 5ensit.ivity analysis 



Projected benefits payabl~ In future years from the date of re For year ended March For year ended March 
31,2023 31,2022 

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 
Rate of discountin& 

Impact of +0.5% change 5.72 4.45 
{% change) (2.36%) (2.47%) 
Impact of ·0.5% change 6.00 4.68 
(%change) 2.48% 2.59% 

Rate of salary Increase 
Impact of +0.5% change 6.00 4.68 
(%change) 2.41% 2.50% 
Impact of-().5% change 5.72 4.45 
(%change) {2.32%) {2.41%1 

Withdrawal Rate (W.R.J varied by 10% 
W.R.xllO% 5.45 4.23 
(%change) (6.99%1 {7 .22%1 
W.R.x90% 6.32 4.93 
(% change) 7.87% 8.13% 

(K) Other disclosures 
The weighted average duration of the obligations as at March 31, 20231s 5.43 years (as at March 31, 2022: 5.49 years and April!, 2021: 
5.45 Years). 



Arbde Developers limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 

All amounts are~ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

39 Related party disclosures 

39.1 Details of related parties 

Description of relationship Name of the related party 

Key management personnel 

-Director (Managing Director w.e.f. 01.06.2023) A mit Mangilal Jain 

-Director (Whole Time Director w .e.f. 01.06.2023) ArpitJaln 

-Director (Whole Time Director w .e.f. 01.06.2023) Sandeep Jain 

-Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 01.06.2023) Samshet Balkrishna Shetye 

-Company Secretary (w.eJ. 22.05.2023) Sheetal Haresh Solani 

Relatives of key management personnel (where transactions have Kritika Jain 
taken place) Simran Jain 

Ketu Jain 

Sajjan Jain 

Vikram Jain 

Kala Jain 

Mangilal Jain 

SnehaJain 

Enterprises over which key management personnel Is able to The Sajjan Jain Support Trust 
exercise significant influence (where transactions have taken 

place) 

Associates Firms I UP Bhoomi & Arkade Associates 

Atul & Arkade Realty 

Arkade Abode llP 

Chandak & Arkade Associates 

39.2 Transactions during the year with related parties 

S. No. Particulars 
For year ended 

March 31, 2023 

A Key management. personnel 

I Amlt MangUal Jain 

Managerial Remuneration 130.00 
Loan Taken 2,184.55 
Repayment of Loan Taken 1,371.05 
Interest Expenses 235.36 

II ArpitJain 

Managerial Remuneration 448.33 
Loan Taken 341.00 
Repayment of loan Taken 70.78 
Interest Expenses 177.79 

Ill Sandeep Jain 

Managerial Remuneration 438.69 

Loan Taken 200.00 
Repayment of Loan Taken 71.22 
Interest Expenses 182.21 

B Relatives of Kelt Management Personnel 

Ketu Jain 

Managerial Salaries 16.25 

Sale of flat 1,166.25 

Kala Jain 
loan Taken 

Repayment of loan Taken 141.00 

Interest Expenses 0.23 

For year ended 

March 31, 2022 

90.00 

3,188.50 

362.67 

57.86 

121.24 

855.00 . 

51.19 

121.11 

967.02 

80.17 

5.00 

263.00 

135.00 

27.28 
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Ill Sajjan Jain 

Repayment of Loan Taken 

Sale of flat 

IV MangUal Jain 

Repayment of loan Taken 

V Vlkram Jain 
Repayment of loan Taken 

VI Krltika Jain 
Professional Fees Paid 

VII SimranJain 
Commission I Brokerage Paid 

VIII Sneha Jain 
Commission I Brokerage Paid 

C Entemrises over which ke:ll management ~rsonnel is able to exercise 

significant Influence• 

I The Sajjan Jain Support Trust 

Donations Paid 

D Associates Firms I LLP 

1 Bhoomi & Arkade Associates 

Share of profit I {loss) 

Capital Introduce 

Capital Withdrawals 

Ref!layment of Loan Taken 

Interest Expenses 

II Arkade Abode U.P 

Share of profit I {loss) 

Capital Introduce 

Capital Withdrawals 

Ill Atul & Arkade Realty 

Share of profit I {loss) -
,.sOC/~~ Capital Introduce 

~~ O~ NO. ,~ ~;S\ Capital Withdrawals 

1 1~~,, I) 1 4 a <, ... IV Chandak & Arkade Associates 
Y" ;;j)~ • '< Write off of Balances ~~ ~l:j 0) .. " / 

291.00 23.00 
575.00 -

560.00 -

- 16.00 

- 3.00 

- 19.58 

- 19.34 

21.33 -

468.64 730.91 

1.91 199.89 

144.04 37.50 

142.13 0.61 
- 6.15 

(3.79) (0.00) 

0.01 

4.05 0.01 

{0..19) {0.23) 

68.55 38.76 

- -

0.78 -

- .. 
The transactrons wrth related part res are made rn the normal course of busrness and on terms equrvalent to those that prevarlrn 
arm's length transactions. All the related party transactions are reviewed and approved by board of directors. 

39 3 Amounts outstanding with related parties 

- S. No. Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

(f\.00~ y ' ~-?"-~ A Kev management personnel 

lop~
1

~) I Amlt Mangilal Jain 
Loan Payable 4,103.12 3,054.26 

N -~ __h:-- "' Managerial Remuneration Payable 10.06 5.38 
~\. ' (\')._.J 
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II Arpit Jain 
Loan Payable 

Managerial Remuneration Payable 

Ill Sandeep Jain 
Loan Payable 

Managerial Remuneration Payable 

IV KalaJain 
Loan Payable 

Interest Payable 

IV MangUal Jain 

loan Payable 

IV Sajjan Jain 
loan Payable 

B Associates Firms 

I Bhoomi & Arkade Associates 
Capital balance with firms 

Loan Payable 

II Atul & Arkade Realty 

Capital balance with firms 

Ill Arkade Abode LtP 
Capital balance with firms 

IV Chandak & Arkade Associates 

Capital balance with firms 

1,406.58 

212.31 

1,436.66 

216.16 

24.76 

(32.75) 

1,697.26 

958.57 

15.87 

1,125.67 

18.85 

165.56 

560.00 

291.00 

(359.26) 

142.13 

1,628.91 

7.84 

0.78 
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40 Financial instruments and risk management 

40.1 Capital risk management 

The Group's objective, when managing capital is to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient 
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital, support the corporate strategy and meet shareholder's expectations. The 
policy of the Group is to borrow funds through banks or raise through equity which is supported by committed 

borrowing facilities to meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company manages its capital structure and makes 
adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirement of financial markets. The capital 
structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, and is monitored by various metrics. The following 

table summarises the capital of the Company : 

As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April 1, 2021 

2023 2022 
Short term debts*(including current maturities of long term 7,024.08 6,321.42 1,369.36 
Long term debts 7,875.45 119.86 

Total Debts 14,899.53 6,441.28 1,369.36 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,661.84) (252.15) (493.95) 

Net debt 13,237.69 6,189.13 875.41 
Total Equity 20,021.19 14,531.57 9,689.75 

Net debt to equity ratio 0.66 0.43 0.09 

In order to achreve thrs overall objectrve, the Group's caprtal management, amongst other thrngs, arms to ensure that rt 
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable, and there has been no breach of any loan covenants. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 

2023, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 

40.2 Categories of financial instruments 

The following table provides categorisation of all financial instruments 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

As at April 1, 2021 
2023 2022 

Financial assets 

Measured at amortised cost 

(a) Loans (including inter corporate deposit) 9.07 1.54 2.31 

(b) Security deposits 202.99 3.99 9.28 

(c) Deposits with bank (Fixed Deposits) 637.24 110.00 65.00 

(d) Cash and cash equiva lent 1,661.84 252.15 493.95 

(e) Bank balance other than (d) above 95.23 700.29 665.80 

(f) Trade rece iva bl es 370.49 525.97 1,261.27 

(g) Other f inancial assets 64.75 14.76 16.40 

Total financial assets 3,041.60 1,608.71 2,514.00 

Financial liabilities 

Measured at amortised cost 

(a) Borrowings 14,899.53 6,441.28 1,369.36 

(b) Trade payables 2,351.90 1,373.16 2,229.25 

(d) Other financial liabilities 1,372.86 770.86 737.77 

Total financial liabilities 18,624.28 8,585.30 4,336.38 

, soc, ~ 
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f(lf:.Lo';5~,, ~ otH·O < 1 

,J~cQ~r~' 
g~~-;) c.u o? 

~ ,f '( I 

<( - <: ) b·! ,,,u,.,,t;: 
'; ~~ • ~I ?;; ;'!ir,; ·~/ \ .• \,,_ ,·.:::.· .. ~ 

* t-/1~ 
"'·· '• .......... ,.. .. ·' \ '>•' .,...,. 
·~ .. \_ (\ ·:..' .. .;r 

- """~~~.-.'~·.:.·:;,~· 



Arkade Developers limited (Formerly known as Arkade Developers Private limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 
All amounts are 't: in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

40.3 Financial risk management objectives 
The Group's principal financial liabilities compri se loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main 
purpose of these financial liabili t ies is to finance the Company's operations. The Group's principal financial assets 

include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. 

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group periodically reviews the risk management 
policy so that the management manages the risk through properly defined mechanism. The focus is to foresee the 
unpredictabili ty and minimise potent ial adverse effects on the Group's f inancial performance. The Group's overall r isk 

management procedures to minimise the potential adverse effects of financial market on the Group's performance are 
as follows: 

(i). Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fa ir va lue of futu re cash flows of a financial instrument will f luctuate because of changes 

in market pri ces. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as 
equity price risk and commodity ri sk. 

(a) Interest rate risk: 

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk from long·term borrowings at variable rate. Currently the Group has 
external borrowings and borowwings from promoter & promoter groups which are fixed and floating rate borrowings. 

The Group achieves the optimum interest rate profile by refinancing when the interest rates go down. However this 
does not protect Group entirely from the risk of paying rates in excess of current market rates nor eliminates fu lly cash 

fl ow risk associated with variability in interest payments, it considers that it achieves an appropriate balance of exposure 
to these risks. 

(b) Foreign currency risk: 

Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash f lows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes 

in foreign currency rates. Exposures can arise on account of the various assets and liabilit ies which are denominated in 
currencies other than Indian Rupee. 

Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date· 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

As at April 1, 2021 
2023 2022 

(a). Financial liabilities: 

In USD - - -
Equivalent in ~ lakhs - -

(b). Financial assets: 

In USD - - -
In EURO - -

Equivalent in ~ lakhs - - -
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{ii). Credit risk management 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty wi ll not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, 
leading to a f inancial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade 

receivables) and from its f inancing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange 
transactions and other f inancial instruments. 

The Group's exposure to credit ri sk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The 
demographics of the Group's customer base, including the default ri sk of the industry and country, in which customers 
operate, has less influence on the credit risk. 

The Group has entered into contracts for the sa le of residential and commercial units on an installment basis. The 
Installments are specified in the contracts. The Group is exposed to credit risk in respect of installments due. However, 
the possession of residential and commercial units is handed over to the buyer only after all the installments are 

recovered. In addition, installment dues are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to 
credit risk is not signif icant . The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as 
none of its customers constitutes significant portions of t rade receivables as at the year end. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by Group's treasury in accordance with the 
Group's policy. The Group limits its exposure to cred it risk by only placing balances with local banks of good 

repute. Given the profile of its bankers, management does not expect any counterparty to fail in meeting its obligations. 

(iii). liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in ra ising funds to meet commitments associated with 

financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an 
inabili ty to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fa ir value. The Group has an established liquidity risk management 

framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. 
The Group's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturit ies of financial assets and 

liabilit ies. The Group manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. 

Surplus funds not immediately required are invested in certain financial assets which provide flexibili ty to liquidate at 
short notice and are included in cash equivalents. 

Liquidity risk table 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabil ities based on contractual 
undiscounted payments. 

Particulars 
Up to 

1 year 
1-5 years Total 

March 31, 2023 

Borrowings 7,024.08 7,875.45 14,899.53 
Trade payables 2,351.90 - 2,351.90 
Other financial liabili t ies 1,372.86 - 1,372.86 
Total 10,748.83 7,875.45 18,624.28 

March 31, 2022 
Borrowings 6,321.42 119.86 6,441.28 

Trade Payables 1,373.16 1,373.16 
Other Financial Liabi lities 770.86 770.86 
Total 8,465.44 119.86 8,585.30 

April1, 2021 

Borrowings 1,369.36 - 1,369.36 
Trade Payables 2,229.25 - 2,229.25 
Other Financial Liabilities 737.77 - 737.77 

Total 4,336.38 - 4,336.38 
~ fj 
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41 Fair value measurements 

This note provides information about how the Group determines fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities. 

41.1 Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis 

The Company has not measure any financial assets and f inancial liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 

41.2 Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required) 

The directors of t he Company consider that t he carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabi lities recognised in t hese financia l statements 

approximate their fair values. 

42 Disclosure as per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 

(i) Details of Investments made bv the Companv are given in Note 6.1 in the financial statement. 
(ii) The Group has not granted any loans to any parties during the period. 
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42 Other Notes 

42.1 The Group does not own benami properties. Further, there are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding 

any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

42.2 The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during each reporting period. During each reporting period, the Group has not 
traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency. 

42.3 There were no Scheme of Arrangements entered by the Group during each reporting period, which required approval from the Competent Authority In 
terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

42.4 Relationship with struck-off companies 

The Group did not have any transactions with Companies struck off. 

42.5 The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 
understandinR that the Intermediary shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

42.6 The Group has not made any delay in Registration of Charges under the Companies Act, 2013. 

42.7 Code of Social Security, 2020 
The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential assent In 

September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. the 

Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period when the Code becomes effective. 



Arkade Developers Limited (Formerly known as Arl<ade Developers Private Limited) 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 

All amounts are ~ in Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

43 Ratio Analysis and its elements 
Where any one or both the components of ratios are extracted from statement of profit and loss, the ratios are 

provided for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. However, where both the components of ratio 

are extracted from the Balance sheet, the ratios are provided for all the three periods (i.e., as at March 31, 2022, 

as at March 31, 2021 and April1, 2020). 

a) Current Ratio- Current assets divided by Current liabilities -
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April1, 2021 

2023 2022 

Current assets 52,797.69 35,033.95 33,164.41 

Current liabilities 27,519.23 22,414.43 25,199.89 

Ratio (In times) 1.92 1.56 1.32 

% Change from previous year 23.08% 18.18% -

b) Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by average equity 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

.2023 2022 

Net profit after tax 5,484.08 4,890.87 

Total equity* 17,276.38 12,110.66 

Ratio 0.32 0.40 

% Change from previous year -21.40% 

*Average equity represents the average of opening and closing total equity. 

c) Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of materials consumed divided by average 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 

Cost of materials consumed 13,290.93 15,996.01 

Average Inventory 39,976.71 25,154.81 

Ratio (In times) 0.33 0.64 

% Change from previous year -47.72% 

Reason for change more than 25%: 
Due to increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and increased in overall opertions of the 

Company. 

d) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by average trade 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 

Sales 21,915.67 22,301.10 

Average Trade Receivables# 448.23 893.62 

Ratio (In times) 48.89 24.96 

% Change from previous year 95.92% 

# Trade receivables is included gross of ECL and net of customer advances. Average Trade 
receivables represents the average of opening and closing trade receivables. 



e) Trade payables turnover ratio= Credit purchases divided by average trade payables 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 
Contract Cost 33,442.84 25,487.92 
Closing Trade Payables 931.26 900.60 
Ratio (In times) 35.91 28.30 
%Change from previous year 21.19% 

f) Net Capital Turnover Ratio =Sales divided by Net Working capital 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 
Sales (A) 22,015.27 22,893.46 
Current Assets {B) 52,797.69 35,033.95 
Current liabilities (C) 27,519.23 22,414.43 
Net Working capital (D = B · C) 25,278.46 12,619.52 
Ratio (In times) (E =A I D) 0.87 1.81 

" Change from previous year -51.99% 

Reason for change more than 25": 
Due to increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and increased in overall opertlons of the 
Company has lead to !creased investments in working capital of the Company. 

g) Net profit ratio = Net profit before tax divided by Sales 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 
Net profit before tax 6,818.38 5,580.19 

Sales 22,015.27 22,893.46 
Ratio 31" 24" 
% Change from previous year 27.06" 

Return on Capital employed (pre -tax) =Earnings before Interest and taxes (E81T) divided by average Capital 
h) I d Employe 

i) 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 
Profit before tax (A) 6,818.38 5,580.19 
EBIT (B)= (A) 6,818.38 5,580.19 
Tot a I Assets (C) 55,530.26 37,137.24 
Current liabilities (D) 27,519.23 22,414.43 
capital Employed (E)=(C)-(0) 28,011.03 14,722.81 

Ratio (In ") 24" 38% 

" Change from previous year -35.78" 

Reason for chance more than 25": 
Due to increase in Inventory of Work in Progress for New Projects and Increased in overall opertions of the 
Company has lead to icreased investments in working capital of the Company. 

Debt Equity ratio:: Total debts divided by Total Equity 

Partlcula rs 
As at March 31, As at March 31, As at Aprill, 2011 

2023 2022 
Total Debts 14,899.53 6,441.28 1,369.36 

Shareholder's funds 20,021.19 14,531.57 9,689.75 
Ratio (In Times) 0.74 0.44 0.14 

" Change from previous year 67.89% 213.66% 



j) 

Reason for change more than 25%: 

Increase in FY 21-22 is mainly on account of increase in unsecured borrowings & Increase in FY 22-23 is on account 

of raising fresh Term Loans for Projects & unsecured borrowings. 

Debt service covel'lllge l'llltlo= Earnings available for debt services dividend by total interest and principal 

repayments. 

Particulars 
As at March 31, As at March 31, 

2023 2022 

Profit after tax (A) 5,484.08 4,890.87 

Add: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost 

·Depreciation and amortisation (B) 27.12 7.13 

-Finance cost (C) 128.12 432.94 

Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Pre-ta 155.23 440.07 

Total Non-cash operating expenses and finance cost (Post- 116.16 329.31 

tax) (E = D (1-Tax rate)) 

Earnings available for debt services (F = A+E) 5,600.24 5,220.18 

Debt service 

Interest (G) 746.31 411.09 

lease payments (H) - . 
Principal repayments (I) (3,844.78) (573.60) 

Total Interest and principal repayments (J = G + H +I) (3,098.47) -162.51 

Ratio (In times) (J = F/i) 1.81 32.12 

%Change from previous year ·94.37% 

Reason for change more than 25%: 

Due to increase in repayment of principle amount of unsecured borrowings (which are repayable on demands) 

k) Return on Investments 

This ratio has not been calculated since the Company does not have any Investments as on 31st March, 2023 
except investments in Associates Firms 

44 Other Events 

44.1 Initial Public Offer· Dl'lllft Red Herring Prospectus 
The Company has formed the IPO Committee vide resolution passed in the meeting of Board of Directors of the 

Company held on December OS, 2022 for initiating the process of preparing and filing of the Draft Red Herring 
Prospectuts in terms of SEBI (Issue of Capital & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations. 

44.2 Events after balance sheet date 

Significant non - adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these 

financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Company requiring disclosure : 

(a) Conversion into Public Umited Company 

The Company has been converted from Private limited Company to Public limited Company vide resolution 

passed in the Extl'lll Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on June OS, 2023. 
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45 Flnot-time adoption of lnd-AS 

45.1 Reconciliation of total eaultv as at March 31, 2022 and April I, 2021 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at Aprill, 2021 

Total equity (shareholder's funds) under previous GAAP 14,528.44 9,637.05 

lnd AS Adjustments: 

Gratuity Impact as per valuation (14.84) (16.83) 

Leave encashment Impact as per valuation (4.56) (4.01) 

Gain I (loss) on fair valuation of investments in equity instruments measured through 11.64 55.40 

FVTPL 
Tran.saction Cost related to term loans -

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of Deferred tax) through OCI (15.91) (4.00) 

Deferred Tax Impact 26.79 22.14 

Total adjustment to equity 3.12 52.70 

Total equity under lnd AS 14,531.57 9689.75 

45.2 ReconciHatlon of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particulars For Year ended March 

31,2022 

Profit after taK as per previous GAAP 4,928.53 

lnd AS Adjustments: 
Gratuity Impact as per valuation 2-01 
Leave encashment Impact as per valuation (0.56) 

Gain I (loss) on fair valuation of Investments In equity Instruments measured through {43.76) 

FVTPL 
Transaction Cost related to term loans 
Deferred tax impact 4.65 

Total adjustment to profit or loss (37.66) 

Profit after tax under lnd AS 4,890.87 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of Deferred tax) (11.91) 

Total comprehensive Income under lnd AS 4,878.97 
.. 

Note: Under prev1ous GAAP, total comprehens•ve Income was not reported. Therefore, the above reconcli1at•on starts w1th profit under the previous GAAP . 

45.3 Impact of lnd AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2022 
There were no significant reconciliation items between cash flows prepared under Indian GAAP and those prepared under lnd AS. 

45.4 Notes to first-time adoption: 

a 8orrowinss 
Under previous GAAP, transaction costs Incurred in connection w ith borrowings are charged upfront to Statement of Profit and Loss for the period/year. 
Under Jnd AS, transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss using effective 

Interest method. 

b. Actuarial gains and losses 
The Impact is on account of measurement of employee benefits obligations as per lnd AS 19. Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses wer~ 

recognised in profit and loss. Under lnd AS, the actuarial gains and losses forming part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability I asset, are 

recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) under lnd AS instead of profit or loss. The actuarial gains for the year ended March 31, 2023 were 'I: 
3.82 Lakshs. This change does not effect total equity, but there is a decrease In profit before tax to that extent. 

c. Deferred Tax 
The previous GAAP requires deferred tax account.ing using the Income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and 
accounting profits for the period. lnd AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using balance sh""t approach which f~uses on temporary 
differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability In the balance sheet and its tax base. Various transitional adjustments has resulted in 

recognition of temporary differences. 

d. Expected Credit Allowance on Trade Receivables 
Under lnd AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on forward-looking expected credit loss (ECL) model which has led to an increase in the 
amount of provision as on the date of transition. The Company chose to calculate Impairment allowance under simplified approach for trade receivables 
where the Companv does not separately track chanaes in credit risk. 

45.5 Companies I Firms consolidated as subsidiaries I Associates In accordance with Accounting Standard 21 -Consolidated financial Statements : 



Arllade Developers Umited (Formerly known as Alkade Developers Private Umlted) 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at March 31, 2023 
All amounts are~ In Lakhs unless otherwise stated 

45.6 Disclosure of additional information as required by the Schedule Ill: 

(a) As at and for the year ended March 31, 2023 
Name of the entity In the Group Net Assets, I.e., total assets 

minus total liabilities 

As" of Amount 
Consolidated 

Net Assets 

Parent Company 
Arkade Developers limited 99.95% 20,015.99 

Subsidiaries 
Indian 
Arkade Rea lty 0.01% 1.70 
Arkade Paradigm 0.02% 3.50 

Non-controlling Interest 0.03% 5.24 

Total 100.00" 20,02~ 
-------

{b) As at and for the year ended March 31. 2022 
Name of the entity in the Group Net Assets, i.e., total assetS 

minus total liabilities 

As" of Amount 
Consolidated 

Net Assets 

Parent Company 
Arkade Developers limited 100.27% 14,551.42 

Share In profit or loss 

As%of Amount 
Consolidated 
profit or loss 

100.12% 5,490.46 

(0.11%) (5.91) 
0.02% 1.24 

-0.03% (1.71) 

'---- --~()().()0% ______M_84_-_0I! 

Share In profit or loss 

As% of A.mount 
Consolidated 
profit or loss 

95.74% 4,682.72 

Share In other Share in total 
comprehensive Income comprehensive income 

As "of Amount As% of Amount 
Consolidated consolidated 

other total 
comprehensive comprehensive 

Income income 

100.00% 3.82 100.12% 5,494.29 

0.00% . (0.11%) (5.91) 
0.00% . 0.02% 1.24 

0.00% . -0.03% (1.71) 

100.00% 3.8l 100.00" 5,487.90 

Share In other Share In total 
comprehensive Income comprehensive income 

As "of Amount As %of Amount 
Consolidated consolidated 

other total 
comprehensive comprehensive 

100.00% (11.91) 95.73% 4,670.81 
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46 Previous vear's fl11ures have been reRrouoed I reclassed wherever necessarv to corresoond with the current vear's classification I disclosure. 
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